
COMMISSION 
MEETING 

February 17, 2021 
10:00 a.m. to 12 noon

The Commission will be meeting by teleconference 
and live-streamed from:

Wheaton Headquarters 
Auditorium 

2425 Reedie Drive 
Wheaton, Maryland 20902 



This page intentionally left blank.  



ITEM 1 
MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION  

MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, February 17, 2021   

Via videoconference, and live-streamed by 
The Montgomery County Planning Department 

10:00 a.m. – 12 noon 

    ACTION 
 Motion   Second 

1. Approval of Commission Agenda (10:00 a.m.) (+*) Page 1 

2. Approval of Commission Minutes (10:05 a.m.)
a) Open Session – January 20, 2021 (+*) Page 3 

3. General Announcements (10:05 a.m.)
a) M-NCPPC Black History Month Observances
b) National Blood Donor Month
c) American / National Heart Month
d) Upcoming Women’s History Month (March 2021)
e) Financial Disclosure Filing Requirement Reminder

4. Committee Minutes/Board Reports (For Information Only) (10:10 a.m.)
a) Executive Committee Meeting – Open Session – February 3, 2021 (+) Page 7 
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Regular Meeting – January 5, 2020 (+)  Page 11 

5. Action and Presentation Items (10:15 a.m.)
a) Resolution 21-02 Golf Cart Easement Agreement (Sun) (+*) Page 15 
b) Resolution 21-03 Riverview Park – Vista Way Storm Drain Easement (Sun) (+*) Page 29 
c) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Auditor SB & Company, LLC Presentation (Lehman) (+) Page 41 
Finance Presentation (Zimmerman/Rodman) (+) Page 67 

d) Briefing on Preliminary FY22 Spending Affordability Guidelines for
Montgomery County (Kroll) (+) Page 79 

e) Legislative Update (Gardner) (H*) 

6. Officers’ Reports (11:15 a.m.)

Executive Director’s Report
a) Late Evaluation Report, January 2021 (For Information Only) (+)  Page 81 

Memo to Department Heads (Chiang-Smith/Spencer) (+) Page 83 

Secretary Treasurer 
b) 4th Quarter Investment Report (For Information Only) (+) Page 87 

General Counsel 
c) Litigation Report (For Information Only) (+) Page 93 

Pursuant to Maryland General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, Section 3-305(b) (7) & (9), 
a closed session is proposed to consult with counsel for legal advice, conduct collective bargaining discussions  
and consider matters that relate to negotiation. 

7. Closed Session (11:20 a.m.)
a) Quarterly CIO Report (Chilet) (++) 
b) I495-I270 Managed Lanes Project Update (discussion item)

(+) Attachment  (++) Commissioners Only    (*) Vote (H) Handout  (LD) Late Delivery   

1



This page intentionally left blank.   

2



Commission Meeting 
Open Session Minutes 

January 20, 2021 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission met via videoconference with the Chair initiating 
the meeting at the Wheaton Headquarters Auditorium in Wheaton, Maryland.  The meeting was broadcast by the 
Department of Parks and Recreation, Prince George’s County. 

PRESENT  

Montgomery County Commissioners Prince George’s County Commissioners 
Casey Anderson, Chair  Elizabeth M. Hewlett, Vice-Chair 
Gerald Cichy   Dorothy Bailey 
Tina Patterson William Doerner 
Partap Verma  Manuel Geraldo  

NOT PRESENT 
Natali Fani-Gonzalez A. Shuanise Washington

Chair Anderson called meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. 

ITEM 1  APPROVAL OF COMMISSION AGENDA  
No modifications 
ACTION:  Motion of Vice-Chair Hewlett to approve the agenda 

Seconded by Commissioner Geraldo 
8 approved the motion  

ITEM 2  APPROVAL OF COMMISSION MINUTES 
Open Session – December 16, 2020  
Closed Session – December 16, 2020 
ACTION:  Motion of Vice-Chair Hewlett to approve the minutes 

Seconded by Commissioner Geraldo 
7 approved the motion  
1 abstention (Patterson) 

ITEM 3  GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a) Presidential Inauguration
b) National Blood Donor Month
c) National Slavery and Human Trafficking Prevention Month
d) Upcoming M-NCPPC Black History Month Observances – February 2021
e) Financial Disclosure Filing Requirement April 30 (State and M-NCPPC)

ITEM 4  COMMITTEE MINUTES/BOARD REPORTS (For Information Only) 
No Executive Committee held in January 2021 
a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Regular Meeting, November 6, 2020

Item 2a

3



Commission Meeting Minutes – Open Session   2 
January 20, 2021 

ITEM 5 ACTION AND PRESENTATION ITEMS 

a) Rotation of the Chair  
Chair Anderson thanked Vice-Chair Hewlett and all the agency departments for their great 
cooperation and support. He said the pandemic has tested us, not only personally, but has 
made us adapt as a Commission and workplace.  It is a testament to these wonderful 
relationships, and there is nobody he would rather be beside than Vice-Chair Betty Hewlett.  
He thanked all staff from park maintenance workers and support staff, through professional 
staff and senior management.  The agency had no plan or playbook, but our decisions on 
managing our workforce and budget has left us in good shape.  We have seen how critical our 
planning functions and parks systems and front-line personnel are essential to keep our 
citizens’ mental and physical health intact. The agency will continue to be challenged, but we 
will come out the other side in the coming term.   
 
Vice Chair Hewlett thanked Chair Anderson, sharing that 2020 was a challenging year and 
with no playbook and it was a pleasure to work with the management team to navigate these 
waters.  She was proud of all our employees, and their efforts to keep facilities open, 
available, inclusive and compassionate.  She asked for prayers for the safety to our 62 park 
police officers while they protect our new administration and the residents of Washington DC 
during the inauguration.  She reminded all to continue to step up, stand up, and speak up. 
 
ACTION:   Motion of Patterson to elect Elizabeth Hewlett as M-NCPPC Chair and Casey 

Anderson as M-NPCPPC Vice-Chair for 2021. 
  Seconded by Geraldo 

8 approved the motion 
 

b) Resolution 20-28 Adoption of the Mihran Mesrobian House:  Amendment to the Master Plan 
for Historic Preservation (Liebertz)  
No Discussion 
ACTION:   Motion of Anderson to adopt Resolution 20-28 
                 Seconded by Geraldo 

8 approved the motion  
 

c) Resolution 21-01 M-NPCPPC CAPRA Accreditation (Bennett/Ramos/Nissel)  
No Discussion 
ACTION:   Motion of Geraldo to adopt Resolution 21-01 
                 Seconded by Patterson 

8 approved the motion  
 

d) Diversity Council  
 
Executive Director Chiang-Smith said the agency’s Diversity Counsel has met online this 
year to meet its goals.  She noted its work is more important than ever and staff can use a 
message of hope to work together and find commonalities.  The counsel put together training 
on a Diversity Equity Inclusion program and this hear two liaisons from the Park Police have 
joined the council. 

4



Commission Meeting Minutes – Open Session   3 
January 20, 2021 

 
i. Appreciation of 2020 Departing Members (Chiang-Smith) 

Executive Director Chiang-Smith thanked individual departing members, adding she 
hoped these individuals continue to help and use their training as the Council moves 
forward. 
  

ii. Introduction of 2021 Diversity Council (Chiang-Smith) 
Executive Director Chiang-Smith introduced incoming members of the 2021 Diversity 
Council, who will be continuing its work.   
 
Chair Hewlett expressed her thanks to the Diversity Council and its importance to the 
Commission.  It demonstrates inclusion and embraces differences in cultures and people.   
 

iii. Diversity Council 2020 Year in Review (Black/Jennai) 
Council Chair Ms. Black shared the Diversity Council’s progress from 2020.  Guided by 
the 2019-2021 Strategic Plan.  She and Council Vice Chair Jennai shared the presentation 
and provided highlights from the packet, including: 

• Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Training 
• Outreach 
• Communication 
• Website, InSite & SharePoint 
• M-NCPPC Events 
• Representation & Support 
• Policy & Recommendation 
• Strategic Plan & Progress 
• Planning for 2021 

 
Chair Hewlett thanked Ms. Black and Ms. Jennai for the presentation. Commissioner 
Patterson thanked the team and said she would contact them with more resources and 
looked forward to supporting them in 2021.  Commissioner Geraldo thanked the counsel, 
noting this year has been more challenging than ever. 
 

e) Legislative Update (Gardner)  
General Counsel Gardner presented a legislative update on HB285 on behalf of the planning 
departments and legislative management team.  Under current Maryland law, the race and 
ethnicity of transportation-related accident victims cannot be maintained.  HB285 will 
establish a work group to determine a way to collect this data.  This creates a challenge from 
a planning perspective, since the incidents of traffic accidents where people are injured or 
killed are not uniform.  This would give the state a way to collect this data,  He recommended 
the agency support the bill, noting the agency’s Planning Departments do as well.   
 
Vice-Chair Anderson said he is aware the Montgomery County Planning Department has 
been working on this for some time and wanted to make sure the counties planning 
departments are sharing data and synched.  Director Wright said Transportation Planning 
staff have been working on the bill, adding the Departments have already been coordinating 

5



Commission Meeting Minutes – Open Session   4 
January 20, 2021 

closely on it.  It will provide data that will greatly help in future planning efforts, including 
Vision Zero, predictive safety analysis, pedestrian plan and all related work and has been 
actively coordinated with Prince George’s Planning staff in Functional Planning and Policy.  
General Counsel Gardner noted planners Jesse Cohen and Brian Barnett-Woods connected 
immediately, are working together very well, and brought it to the attention of the General 
Counsel’s Office. 
 
ACTION:   Motion of Geraldo to support HB285 
                 Seconded by Cichy 

8 approved the motion 

ITEM 6 OFFICERS’ REPORTS  
 Executive Director’s Report  

a) Late Evaluation Report (December 2020) (For information only) 
Executive Director Chiang-Smith said she will be discussing solutions and tools to reduce the 
number of late evaluations with Directors and Deputies during the next Department Heads’ 
meeting.  

 
Secretary Treasurer Report 

No reports scheduled  
 

 General Counsel Report 
b) Litigation Report (For information only) 

 
There being no further business Chair Hewlett adjourned the meeting sat 10:41 a.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________       ___________________________________ 
James F. Adams, Senior Technical Writer       Asuntha Chiang-Smith, Executive Director 

6



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
February 3, 2021 

On February 3, 2021, the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission’s Executive Committee 
met via teleconference.  Present were Chair Elizabeth M. Hewlett, Vice Chair Casey Anderson, and Executive 
Director Asuntha Chiang-Smith.  Also present were:   

Department Heads 
Andree Checkley, Director, Prince George’s County Planning (PGPL) 
Adrian Gardner, General Counsel 
Mike Riley, Director, Montgomery County Parks (MCPK) 
Bill Tyler, Director, for Prince George’s County Parks and Recreation (PGPR) 
Gwen Wright, Director, Montgomery County Planning (MCPL) 
Joe Zimmerman, Secretary-Treasurer (arrived 10:20) 

Presenters/Staff 
Anju Bennett, Corporate Policy and Management Operations Director 
Mazen Chilet, Chief Information Officer 
John Kroll, Corporate Budget Director 
Jennifer McDonald, Benefits Manager 
William Spencer, Corporate Human Resource Director 

Executive Director Chiang-Smith convened the meeting at 10:03 a.m. 
ITEM 1a – APPROVAL OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA 
Discussion No discussion 

ACTION Motion of Chair Hewlett, second by Vice Chair Anderson.  Agenda approved 
unanimously. 

ITEM 1b – APPROVAL OF COMMISION MEETING AGENDA for February 17, 2021 
Discussion No modification to the February Commission Meeting agenda: 
ACTION/Follow-up Motion of Chair Hewlett, second by Vice Chair Anderson.  Agenda approved 

unanimously. 

ITEM 1c – ROLLING AGENDA FOR UPCOMING COMMISSION MEETINGS 
Discussion No modification 
ACTION/Follow-up 

ITEM 2 – November 4, 2020 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Discussion December 2, 2020 Open Session 

December 2, 2020 Closed Session 
ACTION Motion of Chair Hewlett, second by Vice-Chair Anderson.  Minutes approved 

unanimously. 

Item 4a

7



Executive Committee Meeting – OPEN SESSION   Page 2 
February 3, 2021  

 
ITEM 3 – DISCUSSION/PRESENTATION ITEMS  
Discussion 3a. COVID MOUs with FOP and MCGEO, and request for pass through 

for Command Police Officers (Chiang-Smith/Bennett) 
 
CPMO Director Bennett asked the Executive Committee to approve the 7th 
Memorandums of Understanding recently negotiated with the Municipal and County 
Government Employees’ Organization (MCGEO) and Fraternal Order of Police (FOP).  
The request included a passthrough of the FOP MOU to Police Command staff.   
 
Ms. Bennett summarized the details of the two MOUs as contained in the packet. 
 
The Executive Committee approved the MOUs for MCGEO and FOP.  A discussion was 
held on the pass through to Command Staff.   Action on this item was deferred to 
allow additional consideration of areas discussed by the Executive Committee.  
   

ACTION Motion of Chair Hewlett, second by Vice-Chair Anderson to approve MOUs for MCGEO 
and FOP.  Command pass-through will be examined, based on the discussion, and 
returned to Executive Committee. 

 

Discussion 3b. Late Performance Reviews (Chiang-Smith/Spencer)  
  
Corporate Human Resources Director Spencer described a memo his staff had sent 
senior management to address concerns Commissioner Washington brought up at the 
December Commission meeting regarding late performance reviews (included in late 
delivery).   Department Heads, at their meeting on January 26, were briefed on a 
proposal on how to hold managers more accountable for late performance reviews, 
using the Performance Evaluation system.  Department Heads agreed at their meeting 
that the Performance Evaluation system provided appropriate tools to hold managers 
accountable. 
 
Mr. Spencer briefed the Executive Committee on the segments of the Performance 
Evaluation system that could be used to reflect a manager’s responsibility to be timely 
with evaluating their employees. 
 

ACTION/Follow-up Department Heads, Deputies and managers/supervisors are to use the Performance 
Evaluation system for greater accountability for late evaluations.   

 

Discussion 3c. Wellness Benefits Memo and Presentation to Department Heads 
(Spencer/McDonald) 
 
Mr. Spencer introduced Ms. McDonald to summarize a presentation that was given to 
Department Heads at their January 26 meeting. 
 
Ms. McDonald reviewed the  presentation given at the Department Heads meeting 
and included in the packet material.  She added she and her staff have presented to 
Parks and Recreation, the Legal Department, and have scheduled other departmental 
presentations to staff.  The information is being shared with employees to spread 
awareness of the resources that are available. 
 

8



Executive Committee Meeting – OPEN SESSION   Page 3 
February 3, 2021  

General Counsel Gardner thanked Ms. McDonald and her staff, saying he found the 
training very useful and important for the legal team, as both a resource, and to allow 
his staff to suggest the resources to others if needed to allow them to help their 
peers.  The impact of the new work environment, like any change, can be disruptive to 
peoples’ balance, he said, and this is a phenomenal resource.  He encouraged other 
Department Heads to take advantage of the training. 
 
Vice-Chair Anderson fully agreed and suggested he and Chair Hewlett draft an email 
from two chairs to all staff, acknowledging the unexpected duration of the pandemic 
and how the change in work and life routine is affecting people.   
 
Chair Hewlett agreed and suggested also putting the list of summary resources in 
inSite and the Update newsletter.  She asked if staff might produce a video as well. 
 
Executive Director Chiang-Smith asked if the Chairs wished for the presentation to go 
to the Commission.  Vice Chair Anderson indicated that that Commissioners would see 
the Chairs’ message. 
 
Vice Chair Anderson reiterated his appreciation and said we should strongly promote 
these resources.  We want staff to use them because leadership cares about staff and 
their mental health.  
 

Action/Follow up Chairs will release a joint statement in support of the information.  Will also post to 
inSite and Update.  The Executive Director will discuss producing a video with Public 
Affairs staff. 

 

Discussion 3d.   Investment Report November 2020 (information item only) 
No discussion. 

 

Discussion Change in Telework Program (added discussion item) 
 
Corporate Policy and Management Operations Director Bennett described recent 
changes to Telework Program that were approved by Department Directors.  She 
explained that this Program underwent a comprehensive review in light of the 
extensive use of Telework during COVID-19.  She shared that the agency is moving to a 
model which reflects the appropriate handling of agency closings.   
 
During emergency closings, there is still a need for certain positions to carry out 
critical and essential duties.    Teleworkers will continue working their regular 
schedule.  Emergency compensation would only apply to employees who are asked to 
perform onsite work during an emergency closing.   Teleworkers would receive their 
regular pay and would not receive emergency compensation unless they are required 
to perform onsite work.  Similar models are used at the federal and state level. 
 
Teleworking employees who would like to be off during declared emergency closings 
or liberal leave status are permitted to request use of their leave during emergency 
closings. 
 
The Chairs thanked Ms. Bennett for the briefing and indicated support for the policy 
updates.  They were pleased with the distinction in emergency work.  

Action/Follow up The updated policy will be issued to employees.  

9



Executive Committee Meeting – OPEN SESSION   Page 4 
February 3, 2021  

 
With no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 10:53 a.m. 
 
 
____________________________________________                   ______________________________________ 
James F. Adams, Senior Technical Writer Asuntha Chiang-Smith, Executive Director                                               
                                 
 

10



1 

JANUARY 5, 2021 MINUTES, AS APPROVED, 
AT THE FEBRUARY 2, 2021 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
MINUTES  

Tuesday, January 5, 2021; 10:00 a.m. 
via Microsoft Teams 

Due to COVID-19, the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Employees’ Retirement 
System Board of Trustees (“Board”) met virtually through Microsoft Teams with CHAIRMAN HEWLETT leading 
the call from the County Administration Building in Upper Marlboro, Maryland on Tuesday, January 5, 2021. 
The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by CHAIRMAN HEWLETT.  

Board Members Present 
Elizabeth M. Hewlett, Board of Trustees Chairman, Prince George’s County Commissioner 
Gerald R. Cichy, Board of Trustees Vice Chairman, Montgomery County Commissioner 
Howard Brown, FOP Represented Trustee 
Asuntha Chiang-Smith, M-NCPPC Executive Director, Ex-Officio 
Pamela F. Gogol, Montgomery County Public Member 
Caroline McCarthy, Montgomery County Open Trustee 
Amy Millar, MCGEO Represented Trustee  (Stepped away from 10:01 – 10:20 a.m.) 
Sheila Morgan-Johnson, Prince George’s County Public Member  
Elaine A. Stookey, Bi-County Open Trustee 
Joseph C. Zimmerman, CPA, M-NCPPC Secretary-Treasurer, Ex-Officio 

Board Members Not Present 
Melissa D. Ford, Prince George’s County Open Trustee 

ERS Staff Present 
Andrea L. Rose, Administrator 
Sheila S. Joynes, ERS Accounting Manager 

Presentations 
M-NCPPC Legal Department – Tracey Harvin, Senior Counsel
Wilshire Associates – Bradley A. Baker, Managing Director and Martell McDuffy, Senior Analyst

MS. MILLAR joined meeting then stepped away at 10:01 a.m. 

ITEM 1 APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 5, 2021 CONSENT AGENDA 

ACTION: VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY made a motion, seconded by MS. 
GOGOL to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion PASSED 
unanimously (9 -0). (Motion #21-01) 

ITEM 2 CHAIRMAN’S ITEMS 

ITEM 3 MISCELLANEOUS 
No items reported. 

MS. MILLAR returned at 10:20 a.m. 

Item 4b

11



2 

JANUARY 5, 2021 MINUTES, AS APPROVED, 
AT THE FEBRUARY 2, 2021 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING  

 

ITEM 4            MANAGER REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS 
 Wilshire Associates 
 Presentations by Bradley A. Baker, Managing Director and Martell McDuffy, Senior 

Analyst 
Wilshire Associates provided a Quarterly Investment Summary for the quarter ending 
September 30, 2020. Mr. Baker provided a capital market review and reported on the fund’s 
performance. The ERS’ total fund return was 3.1% (net of fees) for the quarter, underperforming 
the target policy index return of 5.0%. For the one, three, five, and ten-years ended September 
30, 2020 the ERS fund return was –3.4%, 5.3%, 8.0%, and 7.4%, respectively, compared to the 
target policy return of 6.4%, 5.9%, 7.8%, and 7.2%, respectively. The total market value through 
September 30, 2020 was $978.5 million. 

The current low rate environment imposes significant challenges, through lower expected 
returns, and related pressure to take on greater levels of risk. The ERS is at an assumed 6.8% 
rate of return which is well below 7.5% for most.  The only way for plans to achieve the 7.5% 
hurdle is to take on increased risk. Wilshire is forecasting growth going forward. The ERS 
portfolio is balanced and, on a go-forward basis, the ERS has an all-weather portfolio which is 
expected to perform well.   

ITEM 5 COMMITTEE REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS  
A. Investment Monitoring Group 
Presentation by Andrea L. Rose, Administrator 
i. Regular Report of December 15, 2020 
ii. Confidential Report of December 15, 2020 

 
At the Investment Monitoring Group (IMG) meeting of December 15, 2020, the IMG met with 
Wilshire Private Markets for a performance review on the ERS’ private equity portfolio. Wilshire 
committed $105 million (33 underlying partnerships) to two separate accounts, Series I and 
Series II which are diversified across vintage year, strategy and region.  All funds are under $2 
billion in size and 63% are emerging and/or minority owned.  In terms of performance, the net 
combined IRR is 14.3% with a 1.59 TVPI as of September 30, 20120.  This equates to 790 bp of 
outperformance compared to the MSCI ACWI since inception.  

 
The ERS’ private equity portfolio is very well-positioned, and Wilshire is performing a COVID 
risk analysis on every position in the portfolio.  Wilshire believes 2020 may be one of the 
strongest years due to the inefficiencies and opportunities in the market.   

 
Wilshire performed an analysis of the private equity benchmark and indicated benchmarking 
private assets is not as straightforward as public assets. Mr. Baker recommended continuing to 
utilize the MSCI ACWI Index + 3% for the primary benchmark for private equity at the manager, 
asset class and total fund level.  In addition, Mr. Baker recommended adding a secondary 
benchmark that is provided by the Thomson One on a quarterly basis that would help minimize 
tracking error and provide a more “apples to apples” comparison of other like private equity 
portfolio returns. The IMG agreed with Mr. Baker.  Ms. Rose and  MS. MORGAN-JOHNSON 
agreed official action by the IMG and/or Board was not required to simply add an additional 
benchmark to the reporting.   

 
 
 

12



3 

JANUARY 5, 2021 MINUTES, AS APPROVED, 
AT THE FEBRUARY 2, 2021 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING  

 
 
 

B. Administration & Personnel Oversight Committee 
Presentation by Joseph C. Zimmerman, CPA and Andrea L. Rose, Administrator 
i. Regular Report of December 15, 2020 

 
At the December 15, 2020 Administration & Personnel Oversight Committee (“Personnel 
Committee”) meeting, staff reported the team was in a 6-week user acceptance testing (UAT) 
period for the new pension software administration system. Nine months into the pandemic, 
with rising retirement, death and withdrawal transactions, the team was exhausted.  The 
Administrator was exploring options for extending UAT, parallel and bringing in an extra set of 
hands. The Personnel Committee recommended the Administrator move quickly in exploring 
options.  

 
Ms. Rose reported on January 5, 2021 that Levi, Ray & Shoup provided a one-month extension 
(free of charge) for UAT.  Additionally, the Chairman signed an Emergency Waiver for the 
Procurement of Services.  The ERS is temporarily bringing on an extra set of hands to assist 
with analysis and account reconciliations, primarily during the parallel processing period.   

 
During the pandemic there has been a rise in criminal cyber activity, including ransomware 
attacks.  To that end, staff explored additional coverage limits. Staff recommended an increase 
from the existing $2 million policy to a $3 million cyber policy with increased sublimits for 
computer fraud and funds transfer fraud. Note, the ERS has a crime policy as well, to 
supplement the computer and funds transfer fraud.  

 
The Personnel Committee concurred with staff and recommended the Board approve an 
increase from the existing $2 million policy to a $3 million cyber policy with increased sublimits 
for a premium of $15,731.  

 
ACTION: MS. GOGOL made a motion, seconded by MS. 

MILLAR to approve an increase from the existing $2 
million policy to a $3 million cyber insurance policy 
with increased sublimits for a premium of $15,731. 
The motion PASSED unanimously (10-0). (Motion 
#21-02) 

ITEM 6 REPORT OF THE ADMINISTRATOR 
 Presentation by Andrea L. Rose, Administrator  
 Administrator’s Report dated December 22, 2020 
 

In mid-2020, the ERS granted Social Distancing Leave to ERS employees. Use of this leave was 
set to expire on December 31, 2020.  The Commission extended expiration for Merit employees 
to use their remaining Social Distancing Leave balances through June 30, 2021.  The 
Administrator recommended the same for ERS staff. 

ACTION: MS. CHIANG-SMITH made a motion, seconded by 
VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY to grant ERS employees an 
extension to utilize unused Social Distancing Leave 

13



4 

JANUARY 5, 2021 MINUTES, AS APPROVED, 
AT THE FEBRUARY 2, 2021 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING  

through June 30, 2021. The motion PASSED 
unanimously (10-0). (Motion #21-03) 

ITEM 7  CLOSED SESSION 
 At 11:45 a.m. CHAIRMAN HEWLETT requested a motion to go into Closed Session under 

authority of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland Section 3-
305(b)(5) for the investment of public funds and 3-305(b)(7) to consult with counsel to obtain 
legal advice.  

 
ACTION: VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY made a motion, seconded 

by MS. CHIANG-SMITH to go into Closed Session. 
The motion PASSED unanimously (10-0). (Motion 
#21-04) 

During Closed Session, the following action was taken: 

1.  Approved Consent to Assignment for the Investment Advisory 
Agreement with Eaton Vance Management.  

The Board moved back into Open Session at 11:54 a.m.  

ACTION: VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY made a motion, seconded 
by MS. CHIANG-SMITH to ratify the actions taken in 
Closed Session. The motion PASSED unanimously 
(10-0). (Motion #21-07) 

ACTION: MS. CHIANG-SMITH made a motion, seconded by 
VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY to adjourn the Board 
meeting of January 5, 2021. The motion PASSED 
unanimously (10-0). (Motion #21-08) 

The Board meeting of January 5, 2021 adjourned at 11:55 a.m. 

   
Respectfully, 
  

 
      
Andrea L. Rose 
Administrator   
 

 

14



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: February 11, 2021 

TO: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning, Full Commission 

FROM: Paul J. Sun, Land Acquisition Specialist  PJS 
Park Planning and Development Division 
Department of Parks and Recreation 

SUBJECT: PGCPB Resolution No. 2020-169 (M-NCPPC No. 21-02), for Full 
Commission 

Attached, please find the above referenced Resolution regarding an amendment of an 

existing golf cart easement at Black Branch Stream Valley Park, located in Upper 

Marlboro, Maryland. 

The Commission agrees to grant this easement to Oak Creek LLC, (the Developer), for 

the purposes of installing a golf cart tunnel underneath Church Road in furtherance of 

public safety. In return, the Developer has proffered to construct an upgraded crosswalk, 

along with additional sidewalks and bike paths (all along Church Road) in exchange for 

the use of M-NCPPC’s property. 

We request that the Prince George’s County Planning Board Resolution be scheduled for 

adoption by the Full Commission on February 17, 2021. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Attachment: 

• M-NCPPC Resolution No. 2020-169

Item 5a

15



This page intentionally left blank.   

16



MN 
THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAP'ITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Department of Parks and Recreation, Prince George's County 

fr600 Kenilworth Avenue • Riverdale, Maryland 2073 7

PGCPB No. 2020-169 
RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, The Maryland-Naticnal Capital Park and Planning Commission ("Commission") is authorized under the Annotated Code.of Maryland, Land Use §17-205 to sell, convey, transfer, lease, or exchange any land heid by it and deemed by the Commission not to be needed for park purposes or other authorized purposes; and 
WHEREAS, the Commission owns 10.13 ± acres consisting of Parcel E and 21.34 ± acres consisting of Parcel I of Black Branch Stream Valley Park, located in Upper Marlboro, Maryland, and further identified as Tax Map 76, Grids D, 1 & E-1; and 
WHEREAS, on June 8, 2016, the Commission entered into Oak Creek Golf Cart Easement Agreement, which is recorded in the Land Records ,:,f Prince George's County, Maryland at Liber38516, Folio 110 ("Original Easement"); and 
WHEREAS, Oak Creek CC, LLC (''Developer") b>1s requested that the Commission amend the Original Easement to convey an additional 1.429 ± s. f. easement on Parcel E, and 7,101 ± s. f. easement on Parcel I for the purpose of constructing a golf cart tunnel under Church Road, and 
'WHEREAS, in fnrtherance of public safety, the Developer intends lo construct a crosswalk across Church Road and additional sidewalks and bike paths along Church Road connecting to the crosswalk. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED. that the Planning Board hereby approves the conveyance of the above-referenced easements. 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that, in connection with the transactions contemplated herein, tbe Executive Director fa authorized to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Com.mission, any and all such certificates, documents, and/or instruments. and to·go or cause to be done, any and all such acts, as the Executive Director deems necessary or appropriate to make effective or to implement the intended purposes of the foregoing resolutions, ,vithout limitation, and the taking of such actions shall be deemed C<Jnclusively to be authorized hereby. 

' This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 1he action taken by the Prince George's County Planning Board of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission on the motion of Commissioner Washington, seconded by Commissioner Bailey, with Commissioners Washington, Bailey, Hewlett, Doerner, and Geraldo voting in favor of the motion, in open session, at its regular meeting held on Thursday, November 19, 2020, in Upper Marlboro, Maryland. AP;Z.VED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
! w h O fuu..,1...v .LM-NCPPC Legal Department

Date 
i l /1, // / 2...c

M-NCPPC Resolution 21-02

17



PGCPB No.2020-169 

Page2 

Adopted by the Prince George's County Planning Board this   ! 7th day of December, 2020. 

Elizabeth M. Hewlett 
Chair 

By Jessica Jones 
Planning Board Administrator 

18



Th
e 

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l
Pa

rk
 &

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t O
f P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n

Pr
op

os
ed

 G
ol

f C
ar

t E
as

em
en

t f
or

 O
ak

 C
re

ek
 G

ol
f C

ou
rs

e 
Pr

op
er

ty
 o

f T
he

 M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l P
ar

k 
an

d 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 (M
-N

CP
PC

)

G
ra

nt
 o

f E
as

em
en

t t
o 

O
ak

 C
re

ek
 C

C,
 L

LC

Pr
in

ce
 G

eo
rg

e’
s C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

N
ov

em
be

r 1
2,

 2
02

0

19



Pr
op

er
ty

 o
f M

-N
CP

PC

Bl
ac

k 
Br

an
ch

 S
tr

ea
m

 V
al

le
y 

Pa
rk

M
ap

: 7
6 

G
rid

: D
1/

E1
Pa

rc
el

s:
 E

 a
nd

 I

Lo
ca

tio
n 

M
ap

20



21



22



Pr
op

er
ty

 o
f 

M
-N

CP
PC

Bl
ac

k 
Br

an
ch

 
St

re
am

 V
al

le
y 

Pa
rk

M
ap

: 7
6 

G
rid

: D
1/

E1
Pa

rc
el

s:
 E

 a
nd

 I

Ex
is

tin
g 

Co
nd

iti
on

s

23



Pr
op

er
ty

 o
f 

M
-N

CP
PC

Bl
ac

k 
Br

an
ch

 
St

re
am

 V
al

le
y 

Pa
rk

M
ap

: 7
6 

G
rid

: D
1/

E1
Pa

rc
el

s:
 E

 a
nd

 I

Pr
op

os
ed

  C
on

di
tio

ns

24



25



Th
e 

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l
Pa

rk
 &

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t O
f P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n

Pr
op

os
ed

 G
ol

f C
ar

t E
as

em
en

t f
or

 O
ak

 C
re

ek
 G

ol
f C

ou
rs

e 
Bl

ac
k 

Br
an

ch
 S

tr
ea

m
 V

al
le

y 
Pa

rk

•
Ap

pl
ic

an
t h

as
 re

qu
es

te
d 

th
at

 M
-N

CP
PC

 a
m

en
d 

an
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ea
se

m
en

t t
o 

gr
an

t a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l 8
,5

30
 sq

ua
re

 fo
ot

 p
er

m
an

en
t e

as
em

en
t t

o 
al

lo
w

 fo
r u

nd
er

-r
oa

d 
(C

hu
rc

h 
Ro

ad
) g

ol
f c

ar
t p

at
hw

ay
.

•
Th

is 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r i
m

pr
ov

ed
 g

ol
f c

ou
rs

e 
ci

rc
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
sa

fe
r r

oa
dw

ay
 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
(a

lo
ng

 C
hu

rc
h 

Ro
ad

) f
or

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l p

ub
lic

.
•

In
 re

tu
rn

, t
he

 d
ev

el
op

er
 h

as
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Bl
ac

k 
Br

an
ch

 S
tr

ea
m

 V
al

le
y 

Tr
ai

l a
lo

ng
 C

hu
rc

h 
Ro

ad
 a

nd
 to

 in
st

al
l a

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

cr
os

sw
al

k 
ac

ro
ss

 C
hu

rc
h 

Ro
ad

 fo
r a

 m
uc

h-
ne

ed
ed

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n.

26



Th
e 

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l
Pa

rk
 &

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t O
f P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n

ST
A

FF
  

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

A
pp

ro
va

l

(T
yl

er
/E

w
in

g/
Su

n)

27



Th
e 

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l
Pa

rk
 &

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t O
f P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n

EN
D

28



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: February 11, 2021 

TO: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning, Full Commission 

FROM: Paul J. Sun, Land Acquisition Specialist  PJS 
Park Planning and Development Division 
Department of Parks and Recreation 

SUBJECT: PGCPB Resolution No. 2020-184 (M-NCPPC No. 21-03), for Full 
Commission 

Attached, please find the above referenced Resolution regarding the grant of a perpetual 

subsurface storm drain easement at Riverview Park, located in Fort Washington, 

Maryland. 

The Commission agrees to grant this easement to Prince George’s County, Maryland, as 

a public benefit with no cost considerations. 

We request that the Prince George’s County Planning Board Resolution be scheduled for 

adoption by the Full Commission on February 17, 2021. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Attachment: 

• M-NCPPC Resolution No. 2020-184

Item 5b

29



This page intentionally left blank.   

30



PGCPB No. 2020-184 
4D 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 
("Commission"} is authorized under the Annotated Code of Maryland, Land Use §17-205 to 
transfer any land held by it and deemed by the Commission not to be needed for park purposes or 
other authorized purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission owns Riverview Park consisting of Parcels 51, 52, 53, 81, 
131 and Parcel A, Block U, for a total of 21.78 ± acres located in Fort Washington, and further 
identified as Tax Map 122, Grids E-3 & F-4; and 

WHEREAS, Prince George's County, Maryland has requested that the Commission 
convey a 4,852 ± square foot (0.11 ± acre) perpetual easement over Parcels 51 and 81 to the 
County for installation of subsurface storm drain facility to be maintained by the County; and 

WHEREAS, for the benefit of the public, the Commission intends to grant to the County 
such 0.11 ± acre perpetual easement as requested by the County. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Board hereby approves the 
conveyance of the above-referenced easement, contingent on approval by the full Commission. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that, in connection with the transactions contemplated 
herein, the Executive Director is authorized to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Commission, 
any and all such certificates, documents, and/or instruments, and to do or cause to be done, any 
and all such acts, as the Executive Director deems necessary or appropriate to make effective or 
to implement the intended purposes of the foregoing resolution, without limitation, and the taking 
of such actions shall be deemed conclusively to be authorized hereby. 

* * * * * 

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the action taken by the 
Prince Ge9rge's County Planning Board of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission on the motion of Commissioner Bailey, seconded by Commissioner Geraldo, with 
Commissioners Washington, Geraldo, Hewlett, Doerner and Bailey voting in favor of the motion, 
during open session at its r�gular meeting on Thursday, December 17, 2020. 

APP. OVED AS TO LEGAL SUFF\Clf:W.:':-

() , " ___ v.\_ . 
' M-NCPPC Legal Departmer!t 

Date, __ f L/yj_· .i.-:/ ?_�( --

Elizabeth M. Hewlett 

By: Jessica Jones 
Planning Board Administrator 

Adopted by the Prince George’s County Planning Board this 14th day of January 2021.

M-NCPPC Resolution #21-03

31



This page intentionally left blank.   

32



Th
e 

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l
Pa

rk
 &

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t O
f P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n

Pr
op

os
ed

 S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

 E
as

em
en

t
Pr

op
er

ty
 o

f T
he

 M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l P
ar

k 
an

d 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 (M
-N

CP
PC

)

G
ra

nt
 o

f E
as

em
en

t t
o 

Pr
in

ce
 G

eo
rg

e’
s C

ou
nt

y

Pr
in

ce
 G

eo
rg

e’
s C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

De
ce

m
be

r 1
7,

 2
02

0
Ite

m
 #

3D

33



Pr
op

er
ty

 o
f M

-N
CP

PC

Ri
ve

rv
ie

w
 P

ar
k

M
ap

: 1
22

 G
rid

: E
4

Pa
rc

el
s:

 5
1 

an
d 

81

Lo
ca

tio
n 

M
ap

34



Pr
op

er
ty

 o
f M

-N
CP

PC

Ri
ve

rv
ie

w
 P

ar
k

M
ap

: 1
22

 G
rid

: E
4

Pa
rc

el
s:

 5
1 

an
d 

81

Lo
ca

tio
n 

M
ap

35



Pr
op

er
ty

 o
f M

-N
CP

PC

Ri
ve

rv
ie

w
 P

ar
k

M
ap

: 1
22

 G
rid

: E
4

Pa
rc

el
s:

 5
1 

an
d 

81

Lo
ca

tio
n 

M
ap

36



Th
e 

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l
Pa

rk
 &

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t O
f P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n

Pr
op

os
ed

 S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

 E
as

em
en

t a
t R

iv
er

vi
ew

 P
ar

k

•
Ap

pl
ic

an
t h

as
 re

qu
es

te
d 

th
at

 M
-N

CP
PC

 to
 g

ra
nt

 a
 4

,8
52

 sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
ea

se
m

en
t t

o 
al

lo
w

 fo
r P

rin
ce

 G
eo

rg
e’

s C
ou

nt
y 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

 a
 st

or
m

 d
ra

in
 

sy
st

em
.

•
Th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

is 
st

or
m

 d
ra

in
 sy

st
em

 w
ill

 a
lle

vi
at

e 
flo

od
in

g 
iss

ue
s 

on
to

 th
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s.

•
Th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

no
 c

os
t c

on
sid

er
at

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 g

ra
nt

in
g 

of
 th

is 
ea

se
m

en
t.

37



Th
e 

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l
Pa

rk
 &

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t O
f P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n

ST
A

FF
  

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

A
pp

ro
va

l

(T
yl

er
/E

w
in

g/
Su

n)

38



Th
e 

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l
Pa

rk
 &

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t O
f P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n

EN
D

39



This page intentionally left blank.   

40



PR
ES

EN
TA

TI
O

N
TO

TH
O

SE
C

H
A

RG
ED

W
IT

H
G

O
V

ER
N

A
N

C
E

Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
7,

 2
02

1

E

41



A
g

en
d

a
 f

or
D

is
cu

ss
io

n

2

In
tro

du
ct

io
ns

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y

A
ud

it 
A

pp
ro

ac
h

Re
qu

ire
d

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

M
ee

tin
g 

Yo
ur

 E
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

42



In
tr

od
u

ct
io

n
s

43



In
tr

od
u

ct
io

n
s

4

Yo
ur

 S
BC

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t L

ea
de

rs
hi

p

Bi
ll 

Se
ym

ou
r, 

C
PA

, C
G

FM

En
ga

ge
m

en
t P

ar
tn

er

C
hr

ist
op

he
r 

Le
hm

an
, M

BA
, C

PA

A
ud

it 
Pa

rt
ne

r

Ra
he

l D
em

iss
ie

A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er

44



E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

Su
m

m
a

ry

45



6

Sc
op

e 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

s

•A
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

0 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

•R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

C
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
A

nn
ua

l F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t
•R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
U

ni
fo

rm
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t

•U
ni

fo
rm

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
Si

ng
le

 A
ud

it
•O

bs
er

va
tio

n 
no

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
au

di
t p

ro
ce

ss
•Y

ea
r-

ro
un

d 
di

sc
us

sio
ns

 o
n 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
an

d 
au

di
tin

g 
iss

ue
s

46



7

Su
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e 
R

es
u

lt
s

•I
ss

ue
d 

an
 u

nm
od

ifi
ed

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

•W
e 

di
d 

no
t d

isc
ov

er
 a

ny
 in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 f

ra
ud

•D
isc

ov
er

ed
 n

o 
m

at
er

ia
l w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tro
ls

•R
ec

ei
ve

d 
fu

ll 
co

op
er

at
io

n 
fr

om
 m

an
ag

em
en

t
•A

ud
it 

jo
ur

na
l e

nt
rie

s
•N

o 
au

di
t j

ou
rn

al
 e

nt
rie

s 
no

te
d

•F
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ul

ts
 (a

m
ou

nt
s 

in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

: 
20

20
20

19
Ch

an
ge

 in
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
83

,1
81

$ 
    

    
 

58
,6

08
$ 

    
    

Ne
t P

os
iti

on
1,

04
9,

59
1

$ 
   

96
6,

41
0

$ 
    

 

47



A
u

d
it

 
A

p
p

ro
a

ch

48



9

A
u

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

a
ch

49



10

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

of
 C

on
tr

ol
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t

A
re

a
Po

in
ts

 to
 C

on
si

de
r

O
ur

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

C
on

tr
ol

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t

•
Ke

y 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

in
te

gr
ity

, e
th

ic
s, 

an
d 

be
ha

vi
or

•
C

on
tr

ol
 c

on
sc

io
us

ne
ss

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
st

yl
e

•
C

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

co
m

pe
te

nc
e

•
Bo

ar
d’

s p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

ov
er

sig
ht

•
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l s
tr

uc
tu

re
, r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

, a
nd

 a
ut

ho
rit

y
•

H
R 

po
lic

ie
s a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s

R
is

k 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

•
M

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
to

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
e,

 id
en

tif
y,

 a
nd

 r
ea

ct
 to

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

ve
nt

s
•

Pr
oc

es
se

s a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 G
A

A
P,

 b
us

in
es

s p
ra

ct
ic

es
, a

nd
 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

&
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

•
A

de
qu

at
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 re
po

rt
s p

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s

•
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s a
re

 c
on

ne
ct

ed
 w

ith
 b

us
in

es
s s

tr
at

eg
y

•
C

om
m

itm
en

t o
f H

R 
an

d 
fin

an
ce

 to
 d

ev
el

op
, t

es
t, 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r 

IT
 s

ys
te

m
s a

nd
 

pr
og

ra
m

s
•

Bu
sin

es
s c

on
tin

ui
ty

 a
nd

 d
isa

st
er

 re
co

ve
ry

 fo
r I

T
•

Es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ch

an
ne

ls 
fo

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s t

o 
fu

lfi
ll 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
tie

s
•

A
de

qu
at

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n

C
on

tr
ol

 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

•
Ex

ist
en

ce
 o

f 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

po
lic

ie
s a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s
•

C
le

ar
 fi

na
nc

ia
l o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 w
ith

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g
•

Lo
gi

ca
l s

eg
re

ga
tio

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s

•
Pe

rio
di

c 
co

m
pa

ris
on

s o
f b

oo
k-

to
-a

ct
ua

l a
nd

 p
hy

sic
al

 c
ou

nt
-t

o-
bo

ok
s

•
A

de
qu

at
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

ds
 o

f d
oc

um
en

ts
, r

ec
or

ds
, a

nd
 a

ss
et

s
•

A
ss

es
s c

on
tr

ol
s 

in
 p

la
ce

M
on

ito
ri

ng
•

Pe
rio

di
c 

ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

s
•

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns

N
ot

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e

Su
gg

es
te

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e

50



11

E
va

lu
a

ti
on

 o
f 

K
ey

 P
ro

ce
ss

es

Pr
oc

es
s

Fu
nc

tio
n

A
B

C
D

O
ur

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

Tr
ea

su
ry

•
C

as
h 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

•
In

ve
st

m
en

t M
on

ito
rin

g
•

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ol
ic

y 

•
In

ve
st

m
en

t A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

•
In

ve
st

m
en

t V
al

ua
tio

n
•

Re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n

Es
tim

at
io

n
•

M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

•
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
•

C
al

cu
la

tio
n

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
Re

po
rt

in
g

•
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 
D

isc
lo

su
re

•
C

lo
sin

g 
th

e 
Bo

ok
s

•
Re

po
rt

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

•
G

en
er

al
 L

ed
ge

r 
an

d 
Jo

ur
na

l 
En

tr
y 

Pr
oc

es
sin

g
•

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

Re
vi

ew
 o

f 
Re

su
lts

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

•
Pu

rc
ha

sin
g

•
Re

ce
iv

in
g

•
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

Pa
ya

bl
e 

an
d 

C
as

h 
D

isb
ur

se
m

en
t

A
Un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
e 

Pr
oc

es
s

C
W

al
k-

th
ro

ug
h

B
W

ha
t C

an
 G

o 
W

ro
ng

?

D
Te

st 
of

 C
on

tro
ls/

Su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e

N
ot

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e

Su
gg

es
te

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e

51



12

E
va

lu
a

ti
on

 o
f 

K
ey

 P
ro

ce
ss

es
(c

on
ti

n
u

ed
)

Pr
oc

es
s

Fu
nc

tio
n

A
B

C
D

O
ur

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

Pa
yr

ol
l

•
A

tte
nd

an
ce

 R
ep

or
tin

g
•

Pa
yr

ol
l A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
an

d 
Pr

oc
es

sin
g

•
Pa

yr
ol

l D
isb

ur
se

m
en

ts

Re
ve

nu
e

•
Bi

lli
ng

•
C

as
h 

Re
ce

ip
ts

•
Re

ve
nu

e 
Re

co
gn

iti
on

•
C

ut
of

f

Fi
xe

d 
A

ss
et

s

•
Ph

ys
ic

al
 C

us
to

dy
•

A
ss

et
 a

nd
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 P

ro
ce

ss
 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

•
Re

po
rt

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy

•
Pr

og
ra

m
 C

ha
ng

e
•

N
et

w
or

k 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n
•

C
yb

er
se

cu
rit

y 
Pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
an

d 
Ri

sk
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

•
C

lo
ud

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
ro

vi
de

r
•

Ba
ck

 u
p 

an
d 

Re
co

ve
ry

•
Lo

gi
ca

l A
cc

es
s

•
Ph

ys
ic

al
 a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
tro

ls
•

Sy
st

em
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
/S

of
tw

ar
e 

Ve
rs

io
ns

A
Un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
e 

Pr
oc

es
s

C
W

al
k-

th
ro

ug
h

B
W

ha
t C

an
 G

o 
W

ro
ng

?

D
Te

st 
of

 C
on

tro
ls/

Su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e

N
ot

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e

Su
gg

es
te

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e

52



F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
St

a
te

m
en

t
R

es
u

lt
s

53



14

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
St

a
te

m
en

t 
R

es
u

lt
s

St
at

em
en

ts
 o

f N
et

 P
os

iti
on

A
m

ou
nt

s i
n 

th
ou

sa
nd

s
20

20
20

19
20

20
20

19
A

ss
et

s
Cu

rr
en

t a
nd

 O
th

er
 A

ss
et

s
58

2,
68

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
54

1,
67

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
9,

36
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
,2

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

Ca
pi

ta
l A

ss
et

s
1,

05
1,

26
6

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
2,

71
6

   
   

   
   

   
58

,7
03

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
59

,1
05

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

  T
ot

al
 A

ss
et

s
1,

63
3,

94
5

   
   

   
   

   
1,

54
4,

38
9

   
   

   
   

   
68

,0
67

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
72

,3
56

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s

12
2,

58
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

51
,7

26
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
88

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

91
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Li
ab

ili
tie

s/
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s

Cu
rr

en
t P

or
tio

n 
of

 L
on

g-
te

rm
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
30

,7
85

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
42

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

39
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Lo

ng
-te

rm
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
63

2,
78

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
52

6,
29

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
19

,1
86

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

,5
89

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

th
er

 L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

48
,5

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

58
,7

59
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
89

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

23
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
 T

ot
al

 L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

71
2,

08
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

61
5,

09
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
,4

01
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
,2

23
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s
44

,8
23

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
69

,2
21

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

58
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
43

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

N
et

 In
ve

stm
en

t i
n 

Ca
pi

ta
l A

ss
et

s
89

6,
14

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
84

8,
09

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
58

,7
03

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
59

,1
05

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Un

re
str

ic
te

d 
10

3,
47

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
63

,7
04

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(8

,7
34

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
,4

95
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

 T
ot

al
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
99

9,
62

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
91

1,
80

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
49

,9
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
54

,6
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

Bu
si

ne
ss

-T
yp

e 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
ct

iv
iti

es

54



15

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
St

a
te

m
en

t 
R

es
u

lt
s 

(c
on

ti
n

u
ed

)

A
m

ou
nt

s i
n 

th
ou

sa
nd

s
20

20
20

19
20

20
20

19
Pr

og
ra

m
 R

ev
en

ue
s:

   
   

   
Ch

ar
ge

s o
f S

er
vi

ce
s

20
,3

96
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
,2

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,5

07
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,4

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

G
ra

nt
s a

nd
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
9,

92
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
53

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
Ca

pi
ta

l G
ra

nt
 a

nd
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
36

,8
85

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

,9
76

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

en
er

al
 R

ev
en

ue
s:

   
   

   
Pr

op
er

ty
 T

ax
es

42
5,

74
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
1,

18
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
In

ve
stm

en
t E

ar
ni

ng
s

9,
69

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

,9
46

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
65

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

93
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
  T

ot
al

 R
ev

en
ue

s
50

2,
64

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
46

7,
89

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

,1
82

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

,3
58

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

Ex
pe

ns
es

:
   

   
 G

en
er

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t
22

,1
79

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
19

,9
09

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 Z

on
in

g
54

,0
45

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
61

,3
01

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
 P

ar
k 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
25

1,
99

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
23

7,
05

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
s

72
,6

67
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

74
,3

66
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l a
nd

 C
ul

tu
ra

l F
ac

ili
tie

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
28

,9
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

,0
91

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
 In

te
re

st 
on

 L
on

g-
te

rm
 D

eb
t

5,
78

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

92
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s
40

6,
67

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

8,
55

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

,9
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

,0
91

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 B
ef

or
e 

Tr
an

sf
er

95
,9

79
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

69
,3

42
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
2,

79
8)

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
0,

73
3)

   
   

   
   

   
   

Tr
an

sf
er

s
(8

,1
58

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(8
,5

85
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

15
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
58

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

87
,8

22
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
,7

57
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
,6

41
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,1
48

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

-b
eg

in
ni

ng
91

1,
80

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
85

1,
04

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

,6
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
56

,7
58

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
N

et
 P

os
iti

on
-e

nd
in

g
99

9,
62

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
91

1,
80

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
49

,9
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
54

,6
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

St
at

em
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

iv
iti

es
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l A

ct
iv

iti
es

Bu
si

ne
ss

-T
yp

e 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

55



R
eq

u
ir

ed
 

C
om

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

on
s

56



17

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 C

om
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
on

s

A
ud

ito
r’s

 R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

U
nd

er
 

G
en

er
al

ly
 A

cc
ep

te
d 

A
ud

iti
ng

 
St

an
da

rd
s 

(G
A

A
S)

 

Th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 th
e 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

O
ur

 
au

di
t w

as
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

ud
iti

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 g
en

er
al

ly
 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

 o
f 

A
m

er
ic

a,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

re
as

on
ab

le
, 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 a

bs
ol

ut
e,

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 f

re
e 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l m

iss
ta

te
m

en
t. 

W
e 

w
er

e 
en

ga
ge

d 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 g
en

er
al

ly
 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

 o
f 

A
m

er
ic

a.

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
Po

lic
ie

s
M

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 th
e 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r 

th
e 

se
le

ct
io

n 
an

d 
us

e 
of

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s. 

In
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 o

ur
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t l

et
te

r, 
w

e 
w

ill
 a

dv
ise

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

bo
ut

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ne

ss
 o

f 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n.
 T

he
 

sig
ni

fic
an

t a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

us
ed

 b
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

re
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 

th
e 

no
te

s 
to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts.

A
ud

ito
r’s

 J
ud

gm
en

ts
 A

bo
ut

 th
e 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

W
e 

di
sc

us
s 

ou
r 

ju
dg

m
en

ts
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
, n

ot
 ju

st
 th

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ili

ty
, 

of
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 s
el

ec
te

d 
by

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

th
e 

co
ns

ist
en

cy
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 th
e 

cl
ar

ity
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts,
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
la

te
d 

di
sc

lo
su

re
s.

W
e 

ha
ve

 re
vi

ew
ed

 th
e 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
an

d 
ha

ve
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

th
at

 th
es

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s. 

A
ud

it 
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
W

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
C

om
m

iss
io

n’
s 

ov
er

sig
ht

 b
od

y 
ab

ou
t 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

t (
w

he
th

er
 re

co
rd

ed
 o

r 
no

t) 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
in

 o
ur

 ju
dg

m
en

t e
ith

er
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 o

r 
in

 th
e 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
ha

ve
 a

 
sig

ni
fic

an
t e

ff
ec

t o
n 

th
e 

en
tit

y’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s. 
W

e 
al

so
 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

C
om

m
iss

io
n’

s 
ov

er
sig

ht
 b

od
y 

ab
ou

t 
un

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
ud

it 
di

ff
er

en
ce

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
o 

be
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 a

nd
 in

 th
e 

ag
gr

eg
at

e,
 im

m
at

er
ia

l. 

Th
er

e 
we

re
 n

o 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

r 
un

ad
ju

ste
d 

au
di

t a
dj

us
tm

en
ts 

fo
r t

he
 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n’s

 a
ud

it.
 

57



18

Fr
au

d 
an

d 
Ill

eg
al

 A
ct

s
W

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
C

om
m

iss
io

n’
s 

ov
er

sig
ht

 
bo

dy
 a

ny
 f

ra
ud

 a
nd

 il
le

ga
l a

ct
s 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
se

ni
or

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 f
ra

ud
 a

nd
 il

le
ga

l a
ct

s 
(w

he
th

er
 c

au
se

d 
by

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

r 
ot

he
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

s)
 th

at
 c

au
se

 a
 

m
at

er
ia

l m
iss

ta
te

m
en

t o
f 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts.

O
ur

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
no

 in
st

an
ce

s 
of

 f
ra

ud
 o

r 
ill

eg
al

 a
ct

s.

M
at

er
ia

l W
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 

In
te

rn
al

 C
on

tro
l

W
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

al
l s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
de

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

C
om

m
iss

io
n’

s 
sy

st
em

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 
co

nt
ro

ls,
 w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t t
he

y 
ar

e 
al

so
 m

at
er

ia
l 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s.

W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

y 
m

at
er

ia
l w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s.

O
th

er
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 C
on

ta
in

in
g 

A
ud

ite
d 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
ts

N
on

e 
no

te
d.

D
is

ag
re

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t o

n 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

an
d 

Re
po

rt
in

g 
M

at
te

rs

N
on

e 
no

te
d.

R
eq

u
ir

ed
  C

om
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
on

s 
(c

on
ti

n
u

ed
)

58



19

Se
rio

us
 D

if
fic

ul
tie

s 
En

co
un

te
re

d 
in

 P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

A
ud

it
N

on
e 

no
te

d.

M
aj

or
 Is

su
es

 D
is

cu
ss

ed
 w

ith
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rio

r 
to

 
A

cc
ep

ta
nc

e
N

on
e 

no
te

d.

M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
W

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 c

er
ta

in
 w

rit
te

n 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 f
ro

m
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t.

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 O
th

er
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts
To

 o
ur

 k
no

w
le

dg
e,

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

no
 c

on
su

lta
tio

ns
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 a
cc

ou
nt

an
ts

 s
in

ce
 o

ur
 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t a

s 
th

e 
C

om
m

iss
io

n’
s 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t p

ub
lic

 a
cc

ou
nt

an
ts.

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

ou
r 

cl
ie

nt
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
pr

oc
es

s, 
w

e 
go

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
pr

oc
es

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

w
e 

ar
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t o

f 
th

e 
C

om
m

iss
io

n.
  W

e 
ar

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t o
f 

th
e 

C
om

m
iss

io
n.

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 C

om
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
on

s 
(c

on
ti

n
u

ed
)

59



20

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 C

om
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
on

s 
(c

on
ti

n
u

ed
)

O
ur

 R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 R

el
at

ed
 to

 F
ra

ud

•
Pl

an
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
 th

e 
au

di
t t

o 
ob

ta
in

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is 
no

 m
at

er
ia

l m
iss

ta
te

m
en

t c
au

se
d 

by
 

er
ro

r 
or

 f
ra

ud
;

•
C

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 G

A
A

S 
AU

-C
 2

40
 “

C
on

sid
er

at
io

n 
of

 F
ra

ud
 in

 a
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t A

ud
it”

;

•
A

pp
ro

ac
h 

al
l a

ud
its

 w
ith

 a
n 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
th

at
 f

ra
ud

 c
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

 in
 a

ny
 e

nt
ity

, a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e,

 b
y 

an
yo

ne
; a

nd

•
Pe

rf
or

m
 m

an
da

to
ry

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 G

A
A

S 
an

d 
ou

r 
fir

m
 p

ol
ic

ie
s.

Ex
am

pl
es

 o
f 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 P

er
fo

rm
ed

•
D

isc
us

s 
th

ou
gh

ts
 a

nd
 id

ea
s 

in
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

su
sc

ep
tib

le
 to

 m
at

er
ia

l 
m

iss
ta

te
m

en
t d

ue
 to

 f
ra

ud
;

•
U

nd
er

st
an

d 
pr

es
su

re
s 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

t r
es

ul
ts

;

•
U

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
to

ne
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n;

•
Lo

ok
 fo

r 
un

us
ua

l o
r 

un
ex

pe
ct

ed
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
, r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

, o
r 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
;

•
D

isc
us

sio
ns

 w
ith

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 f

in
an

ce
;

•
Ev

al
ua

te
 k

ey
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 c
on

tro
ls;

 a
nd

 

•
C

on
sid

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ga

th
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

au
di

t.

60



R
es

p
on

si
b

il
it

y
 f

or
 M

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 F
ra

u
d

R
ev

en
ue

 &
 

As
se

ts
 

O
bt

ai
ne

d 
by

 
Fr

au
d

M
is

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

of
 A

ss
et

s

Fr
au

du
le

nt
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
R

ep
or

tin
g

C
os

ts
 &

 
Ex

pe
ns

es
 

Av
oi

de
d 

by
 

Fr
au

d

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
M

is
co

nd
uc

t b
y 

M
em

be
r(s

) o
f 

Sr
. M

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 

& 
Li

ab
ilit

ie
s 

fo
r a

n 
Im

pr
op

er
 

Pu
rp

os
e

Ex
te

rn
al

 A
ud

ito
r:

Ev
al

ua
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
ls 

to
 d

et
er

 a
nd

 d
et

ec
t f

ra
ud

 fo
r 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
ris

ks

Re
as

on
ab

le
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

 f
in

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 f

re
e 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l 

m
iss

ta
te

m
en

t d
ue

 to
 f

ra
ud

ul
en

t f
in

an
ci

al
 

re
po

rt
in

g 
or

 m
isa

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
n 

of
 a

ss
et

s

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 fr
au

d 
st

an
da

rd
 (S

A
S 

99
)

C
on

ve
rs

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
ns

 p
er

so
nn

el

D
isa

gg
re

ga
te

d 
an

al
yt

ic
s

Su
rp

ris
e 

au
di

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s

Jo
ur

na
l e

nt
ry

 te
st

in
g

M
an

ag
em

en
t:

C
FO

/C
on

tro
lle

r: 
co

nt
ro

ls
 

to
 d

et
er

 a
nd

 d
et

ec
t f

ra
ud

G
en

er
al

 
C

ou
ns

el
/C

om
pl

ia
nc

e:
 

m
on

ito
rin

g

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
:

Ev
al

ua
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 fr
au

d 
ris

k
Ev

al
ua

te
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 fr

au
d 

co
nt

ro
ls

R
ei

nf
or

ce
 “t

on
e 

at
 th

e 
to

p”
C

on
du

ct
 s

pe
ci

al
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns

21

61



R
eq

u
ir

ed
 C

om
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
on

s 
-

F
ra

u
d

22

O
PP

O
R

TU
N

IT
Y

•
G

en
er

al
ly

pr
ov

id
ed

th
ro

ug
h

w
ea

kn
es

se
s

in
in

te
rn

al
co

nt
ro

ls
.

•
To

ne
at

th
e

to
p

is
im

po
rta

nt
•

W
e

as
se

ss
co

nt
ro

ls
an

d
to

ne
at

th
e

to
p

PR
ES

SU
R

E
•

Pr
es

su
re

 c
an

 b
e 

im
po

se
d 

du
e 

to
 

ec
on

om
ic

 tr
ou

bl
es

, p
er

so
na

l v
ic

es
 a

nd
 

un
re

al
is

tic
 d

ea
dl

in
es

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
go

al
s.

•
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
pr

es
su

re
s 

du
e 

to
 

ec
on

om
y 

an
d 

m
in

im
al

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s.

R
AT

IO
N

AL
IZ

AT
IO

N
•

In
di

vi
du

al
s 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

ir 
fra

ud
ul

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

•
In

cr
ea

se
d 

ra
tio

na
liz

at
io

n 
du

e 
to

 m
in

im
al

 
sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
an

d 
le

ss
 p

er
so

nn
el

62



M
ee

ti
n

g
 Y

ou
r 

E
xp

ec
ta

ti
on

s

63



SB
C

’s
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

le
d

g
e 

to
 Y

ou

W
e

w
ill

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

de
liv

er
a

Q
ua

lit
y

Pr
od

uc
t

an
d

Q
ua

lit
y

Se
rv

ic
e

so
th

at
w

e
ha

ve
th

e
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

to
es

ta
bl

is
h

a
Q

ua
lit

y
R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p

w
ith

yo
u,

al
lo

w
in

g
us

to
pr

ov
id

e
yo

u
w

ith
Q

ua
lit

y
K

no
w

le
dg

e
fo

r
yo

ur
co

nt
in

ua
ls

uc
ce

ss
.

O
nl

y
af

te
rw

e
ha

ve
pr

ov
id

ed
yo

u
w

ith
th

e
kn

ow
le

dg
e

th
at

en
ab

le
s

yo
ur

bu
si

ne
ss

to
gr

ow
an

d
pr

os
pe

r,
w

e
ha

ve
hi

tt
he

bu
lls

ey
e!

O
ur

co
m

m
itm

en
t

to
yo

u
is

th
e

ex
ec

ut
io

n
of

ou
rB

ul
ls

ey
e

Ph
ilo

so
ph

y.
W

e
ex

ec
ut

e
th

is
ph

ilo
so

ph
y

fo
r

ev
er

y
cl

ie
nt

,
on

ev
er

y
en

ga
ge

m
en

t,
ev

er
y

tim
e

24

64



25

E
n

g
a

g
em

en
t T

ea
m

 
C

on
ta

ct
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
on

W
ill

ia
m

 S
ey

m
ou

r
En

ga
ge

m
en

t P
ar

tn
er

O
ff

ic
e:

 (4
10

) 5
84

-1
40

4 
M

ob
ile

: (
44

3)
 2

20
-4

40
1 

w
se

ym
ou

r@
sb

an
dc

om
pa

ny
.c

om

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
A

ss
ist

an
t: 

Su
sa

n 
Te

ne
za

O
ff

ic
e:

 (4
10

) 5
84

-9
30

3
Em

ai
l: 

st
en

ez
a@

sb
an

dc
om

pa
ny

.c
om

W
ill

ia
m

Se
ym

ou
r

C
hr

is
 L

eh
m

an
A

ud
it 

Pa
rt

ne
r

O
ff

ic
e:

 (4
10

) 5
84

-2
20

1
M

ob
ile

: (
30

1)
 7

85
-7

40
8 

cl
eh

m
an

@
sb

an
dc

om
pa

ny
.c

om

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
A

ss
ist

an
t: 

Ti
na

 R
ile

y
O

ff
ic

e:
 (4

10
) 5

84
-9

30
4

Em
ai

l: 
tr

ile
y@

sb
an

dc
om

pa
ny

.c
om

C
hr

is
Le

hm
an

R
ah

el
 D

em
is

si
e

A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er

O
ffi

ce
:  

20
2-

60
9-

83
07

C
el

l: 
 2

02
-2

50
-1

21
9 

rd
em

is
si

e@
sb

an
dc

om
pa

ny
.c

om

65



Ba
lti

m
or

e 
O

ff
ic

e:
10

20
0 

G
ra

nd
 C

en
tr

al
 A

ve
 

Su
ite

 2
50

O
w

in
gs

 M
ill

s, 
M

D
 2

11
17

41
0.

58
4.

00
60

Ph
ila

de
lp

hi
a 

O
ff

ic
e:

15
00

 M
ar

ke
t S

tr
ee

t
Su

ite
 1

20
0,

 E
as

t T
ow

er
Ph

ila
de

lp
hi

a,
 P

A
 1

91
02

21
5.

66
5.

57
49

W
as

hi
ng

to
n,

 D
C

 O
ff

ic
e:

12
00

 G
 S

tr
ee

t, 
N

W
Su

ite
 8

21
W

as
hi

ng
to

n,
 D

C
 2

00
05

20
2.

43
4.

 8
68

4

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
O

ff
ic

e:
68

02
 P

ar
ag

on
 P

la
ce

Su
ite

 4
10

Ri
ch

m
on

d,
 V

A
 2

32
30

80
4.

44
1.

60
00

So
ut

h 
Fl

or
id

a 
O

ff
ic

e:
40

00
 H

ol
ly

w
oo

d 
Bl

vd
Su

ite
 5

55
-S

H
ol

ly
w

oo
d,

 F
L 

33
02

1
95

4.
84

3.
34

77

�
�

66



, 

67



An
nu

al
 R

ep
or

t R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts

La
nd

 U
se

 A
rt

icl
e:

Se
ct

io
n 

15
-1

15
 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

m
us

t p
ub

lis
h 

an
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
cia

l r
ep

or
t c

er
tif

ie
d 

by
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t c
er

tif
ie

d 
pu

bl
ic 

ac
co

un
ta

nt
s.

Se
ct

io
n 

15
-1

16
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
m

us
t p

ub
lis

h 
an

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t s
et

tin
g 

fo
rt

h 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 ye
ar

.

2

68



FY
20

20
 A

ud
it 

R
es

ul
ts

•
Re

ce
iv

ed
 a

n 
un

m
od

ifi
ed

 (c
le

an
) a

ud
it 

op
in

io
n 

fro
m

 S
B 

&
 

Co
m

pa
ny

, L
LC

•
Un

ifo
rm

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
Si

ng
le

 A
ud

it 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

CO
VI

D-
19

 
pa

nd
em

ic 
–
un

de
rw

ay

•
Au

di
t c

on
du

ct
ed

 fu
lly

 o
ff-

sit
e

3

69



Co
m

m
is

si
on

’s
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
(M

ill
io

ns
)

Go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
Ac

tiv
iti

es

Bu
sin

es
s-

Ty
pe

  
Ac

tiv
iti

es
To

ta
l

Re
ve

nu
es

$5
02

.7
$1

6.
2

$5
18

.9
Ex

pe
ns

es
(4

06
.7

)
(2

9.
0)

(4
35

.7
)

Tr
an

sfe
rs

(8
.2

)
8.

2
-

In
c (

De
c)

 in
 N

et
 

Po
sit

io
n

Ne
t P

os
iti

on
-

En
di

ng

$ 
 8

7.
8

$9
99

.6

$ 
(4

.6
)

$ 
50

.0

$ 
 8

3.
2

$1
,0

49
.6

4

70



F
in

a
l B

u
d

ge
t

A
ct

u
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
R

e
ve

n
u

e
s:

  
  

 T
o

ta
l R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

3
1

,7
6

8
.2

$
  

3
1

,0
8

7
.0

$
  

(6
8

1
.2

)
$

  
  

  
E

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
s/

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

s:
  

  
 T

o
ta

l E
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

s/
E

n
cu

m
b

ra
n

ce
s

3
2

,7
9

4
.9

  
  

3
2

,3
1

3
.5

  
  

4
8

1
.4

  
  

  
  

 
  

R
e

ve
n

u
e

s 
o

ve
r 

(u
n

d
e

r)
 E

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

(1
,0

2
6

.7
)

  
  

  
(1

,2
2

6
.5

)
  

  
  

(1
9

9
.8

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
 T

ra
n

sf
e

r 
to

 P
a

rk
 F

u
n

d
(1

2
5

.0
)

  
  

  
  

 
(1

2
5

.0
)

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 C
h

a
n

ge
 in

 F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

ce
(1

,1
5

1
.7

)
$

  
 

(1
,3

5
1

.5
)

  
  

  
(1

9
9

.8
)

$
  

  
  

F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

ce
 -

 B
u

d
ge

t 
B

a
si

s,
 B

e
gi

n
n

in
g

3
,0

5
5

.1
  

  
  

 

F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

ce
 -

 B
u

d
ge

t 
B

a
si

s,
 E

n
d

in
g

1
,7

0
3

.6
$

  
  

M M
O

N
T

G
O

M
E

R
Y

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

AA
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

- 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

 (
T

h
o

u
s

a
n

d
s

)

Fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

, b
ud

ge
t b

as
is

As
sig

ne
d 

(D
es

ig
na

te
d 

fo
r F

Y 
20

21
 B

ud
ge

t)
$ 

   
20

2.
2

Un
as

sig
ne

d 
(D

es
ig

na
te

d 
fo

r C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s)
97

9.
0

Un
as

sig
ne

d 
(n

et
 o

f C
on

tin
ge

nc
y D

es
ig

na
tio

n)
52

2.
4

To
ta

l U
na

ss
ig

ne
d

1,
50

1.
4

To
ta

l f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e,
 b

ud
ge

t b
as

is
$1

,7
03

.6

5

71



F
in

a
l B

u
d

ge
t

A
ct

u
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
R

e
ve

n
u

e
s:

  
  

 T
o

ta
l R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

1
0

9
,6

4
5

.4
$

  
 

1
0

4
,6

7
4

.9
$

  
 

(4
,9

7
0

.5
)

$
  

  
  

 
E

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
s/

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

s:
  

  
 T

o
ta

l E
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

s/
E

n
cu

m
b

ra
n

ce
s

1
0

1
,9

8
4

.9
  

  
 

9
8

,3
7

5
.8

  
  

  
 

3
,6

0
9

.1
  

  
  

  
  

  
R

e
ve

n
u

e
s 

o
ve

r 
(u

n
d

e
r)

 E
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
7

,6
6

0
.5

  
  

  
  

  
6

,2
9

9
.1

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,3
6

1
.4

)
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 I
n

 (
O

u
t)

  
  

  
  

  
C

a
p

it
a

l P
ro

je
ct

 F
u

n
d

s
2

5
.0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
2

6
.4

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

0
1

.4
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 A

cc
o

u
n

t
1

2
5

.0
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
2

5
.0

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
D

e
b

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

(6
,6

2
4

.4
)

  
  

  
  

(6
,2

0
9

.9
)

  
  

  
  

4
1

4
.5

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

C
a

p
it

a
l P

ro
je

ct
 F

u
n

d
s 

- 
D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

(3
5

0
.0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
(3

5
0

.0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 T

o
ta

l T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

(6
,8

2
4

.4
)

  
  

  
  

(6
,3

0
8

.5
)

  
  

  
  

5
1

5
.9

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

  
  

  
C

h
a

n
ge

 in
 F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
ce

8
3

6
.1

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
(9

.4
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(8
4

5
.5

)
$

  
  

  
  

  

F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

ce
 -

 B
u

d
ge

t 
B

a
si

s,
 B

e
gi

n
n

in
g

3
,9

3
1

.5
  

  
  

  
  

F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

ce
 -

 B
u

d
ge

t 
B

a
si

s,
 E

n
d

in
g

3
,9

2
2

.1
$

  
  

  
 

MM
O

N
T

G
O

M
E

R
Y

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

PP
A

R
K

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
- 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 (

T
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

s
)

Fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

, b
ud

ge
t b

as
is

As
sig

ne
d 

(D
es

ig
na

te
d 

fo
r F

Y 
20

21
 B

ud
ge

t)
$ 

   
   

0.
0

Un
as

sig
ne

d 
(D

es
ig

na
te

d 
fo

r P
ro

pe
rt

y M
an

ag
em

en
t)

69
9.

1

Un
as

sig
ne

d 
(D

es
ig

na
te

d 
fo

r C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s)
3,

15
3.

0

Un
as

sig
ne

d 
(n

et
 o

f C
on

tin
ge

nc
y D

es
ig

na
tio

n)
70

.0

To
ta

l U
na

ss
ig

ne
d

3,
92

2.
1

To
ta

l f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e,
 b

ud
ge

t b
as

is
$3

,9
22

.1

6

72



7

Fi
na

l B
ud

ge
t

Ac
tu

al
Va

ria
nc

e
R

ev
en

ue
s:

   
  T

ot
al

 R
ev

en
ue

s
5

8
,7

4
2

.6
$

   
6

0
,0

6
5

.3
$

   
1

,3
2

2
.7

$
   

 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s/
En

cu
m

br
an

ce
s:

   
  T

ot
al

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s/
En

cu
m

br
an

ce
s

5
3

,1
3

4
.2

   
  

4
7

,2
7

1
.8

   
  

5
,8

6
2

.4
   

   
  R

ev
en

ue
s 

ov
er

 (u
nd

er
) E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

5
,6

0
8

.4
   

   
 

1
2

,7
9

3
.5

   
  

7
,1

8
5

.1
   

   
   

  T
ra

ns
fe

r 
to

 P
ar

k 
Fu

nd
(3

,0
0

0
.0

)
   

   
(3

,0
0

0
.0

)
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
  T

ra
ns

fe
r 

to
 S

pe
ci

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
d

(3
0

.0
)

   
   

   
   

(3
0

.0
)

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
2

,5
7

8
.4

$
   

  
9

,7
6

3
.5

   
   

 
7

,1
8

5
.1

$
   

 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 - 

B
ud

ge
t B

as
is

, B
eg

in
ni

ng
5

8
,3

8
1

.4
   

  
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 - 

B
ud

ge
t B

as
is

, E
nd

in
g

6
8

,1
4

4
.9

$
   

PP
R

IN
C

E
 G

E
O

R
G

E
'S

 C
O

U
N

TY
AAD

M
IN

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T-

 G
E

N
E

R
AL

 F
U

N
D

 (
Th

ou
sa

n
d

s)

Fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

, b
ud

ge
t b

as
is

As
sig

ne
d 

(D
es

ig
na

te
d 

fo
r F

Y 
20

21
 B

ud
ge

t)
$ 

   
0.

0

Un
as

sig
ne

d 
(D

es
ig

na
te

d 
fo

r C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s)
2,

69
6.

5
Un

as
sig

ne
d 

(n
et

 o
f C

on
tin

ge
nc

y D
es

ig
na

tio
n)

65
,4

48
.4

To
ta

l U
na

ss
ig

ne
d

68
,1

44
.9

To
ta

l f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e,
 b

ud
ge

t b
as

is
$ 

 6
8,

14
4.

9

73



8

Fi
na

l B
ud

ge
t

Ac
tu

al
Va

ria
nc

e
R

ev
en

ue
s:

   
  T

ot
al

 R
ev

en
ue

s
16

0,
53

9.
9

$ 
   

   
 

16
3,

48
2.

5
$ 

   
2,

94
2.

6
$ 

   
   

 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s/
En

cu
m

br
an

ce
s:

   
  T

ot
al

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s/
En

cu
m

br
an

ce
s

12
5,

50
0.

0
   

   
   

 
12

5,
73

1.
0

   
   

(2
31

.0
)

   
   

   
   

  R
ev

en
ue

s 
ov

er
 (u

nd
er

) E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
35

,0
39

.9
   

   
   

   
37

,7
51

.5
   

   
  

2,
71

1.
6

   
   

   
 

   
  T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 In
 (O

ut
)

   
   

   
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

 F
un

ds
 - 

In
te

re
st

50
0.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

55
6.

5
   

   
   

 
1,

05
6.

5
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

Fu
nd

 - 
Tr

an
sf

er
 In

3,
00

0.
0

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0.

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

(1
5,

29
6.

3)
   

   
   

  
(1

2,
12

0.
3)

   
   

 
3,

17
6.

0
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
 F

un
ds

 - 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

(4
2,

03
0.

0)
   

   
   

  
(4

2,
03

0.
0)

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

  T
ot

al
 T

ra
ns

fe
rs

(5
3,

82
6.

3)
   

   
   

  
(4

9,
59

3.
8)

   
   

 
4,

23
2.

5
   

   
   

 
   

   
Ch

an
ge

 in
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

(1
8,

78
6.

4)
$ 

   
   

  
(1

1,
84

2.
3)

   
   

 
6,

94
4.

1
$ 

   
   

 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 - 

B
ud

ge
t B

as
is

, B
eg

in
ni

ng
13

9,
52

7.
3

   
   

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 - 
B

ud
ge

t B
as

is
, E

nd
in

g
12

7,
68

5.
0

$ 
   

PP
R

IN
C

E
 G

E
O

R
G

E
'S

 C
O

U
N

TY
PP

AR
K

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T-
 G

E
N

E
R

AL
 F

U
N

D
 (

Th
ou

sa
nd

s)

Fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

, b
ud

ge
t b

as
is

As
sig

ne
d 

(D
es

ig
na

te
d 

fo
r F

Y 
20

21
 B

ud
ge

t)
$1

1,
02

1.
1 

   

Un
as

sig
ne

d 
(D

es
ig

na
te

d 
fo

r C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s)
6,

44
1.

6
Un

as
sig

ne
d 

(n
et

 o
f C

on
tin

ge
nc

y D
es

ig
na

tio
n)

11
0,

22
2.

3
To

ta
l U

na
ss

ig
ne

d
11

6,
66

3.
9

To
ta

l f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e,
 b

ud
ge

t b
as

is
$ 

12
7,

68
5.

0

74



9

Fi
na

l B
ud

ge
t

Ac
tu

al
Va

ria
nc

e
R

ev
en

ue
s:

   
  T

ot
al

 R
ev

en
ue

s
9

2
,2

9
0

.8
$

  
8

9
,5

1
1

.6
$

  
(2

,7
7

9
.2

)
$

   
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s/
En

cu
m

br
an

ce
s:

   
  T

ot
al

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s/
En

cu
m

br
an

ce
s

7
5

,5
2

5
.7

   
 

6
4

,7
2

6
.2

   
 

1
0

,7
9

9
.5

   
 

  R
ev

en
ue

s 
ov

er
 (u

nd
er

) E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
1

6
,7

6
5

.1
   

 
2

4
,7

8
5

.4
   

 
8

,0
2

0
.3

   
   

   
  T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 In
 (O

ut
)

   
   

   
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
Fu

nd
(1

0
,0

0
0

.0
)

   
(1

0
,0

0
0

.0
)

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e
(8

,1
5

7
.6

)
   

  
(8

,1
5

7
.6

)
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
  T

ot
al

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
(1

8
,1

5
7

.6
)

   
(1

8
,1

5
7

.6
)

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

(1
,3

9
2

.5
)

$
   

6
,6

2
7

.8
   

   
8

,0
2

0
.3

$
   

 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 - 

B
ud

ge
t B

as
is

, B
eg

in
ni

ng
4

7
,4

6
4

.3
   

 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 - 

B
ud

ge
t B

as
is

, E
nd

in
g

5
4

,0
9

2
.1

$
  

PP
R

IN
C

E
 G

E
O

R
G

E
'S

 C
O

U
N

TY
RR

E
C

R
E

AT
IO

N
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T-

 G
E

N
E

R
AL

 F
U

N
D

 (
Th

ou
sa

n
d

s)

Fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

, b
ud

ge
t b

as
is

As
sig

ne
d 

(D
es

ig
na

te
d 

fo
r F

Y 
20

21
 B

ud
ge

t)
$ 

   
0.

0

Un
as

sig
ne

d 
(D

es
ig

na
te

d 
fo

r C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s)
4,

26
8.

5
Un

as
sig

ne
d 

(n
et

 o
f C

on
tin

ge
nc

y D
es

ig
na

tio
n)

49
,8

23
.6

To
ta

l U
na

ss
ig

ne
d

54
,0

92
.1

To
ta

l f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e,
 b

ud
ge

t b
as

is
$ 

 5
4,

09
2.

1

75



En
te

rp
ris

e 
Fu

nd
s

(T
ho

us
an

ds
)

M
on

tg
om

er
y

Co
un

ty

Pr
in

ce
 

Ge
or

ge
’s

Co
un

ty

Op
er

at
in

g 
re

ve
nu

es
$ 

 9
,0

30
$ 

 6
,5

00

Op
er

at
in

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
, e

xc
lu

di
ng

 d
ep

re
cia

tio
n

8,
60

4
17

,6
33

Op
er

at
in

g 
in

co
m

e 
(lo

ss
), 

ex
clu

di
ng

 d
ep

re
cia

tio
n

42
6

(1
1,

13
3)

De
pr

ec
ia

tio
n

80
3

1,
94

5
Op

er
at

in
g 

In
co

m
e 

(lo
ss

)
(3

77
)

(1
3,

07
8)

No
no

pe
ra

tin
g 

re
ve

nu
e 

(e
xp

en
se

)
35

9
29

7
Tr

an
sf

er
s/

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

0
8,

15
8

Ch
an

ge
s i

n 
Ne

t P
os

iti
on

$ 
   

(1
8)

$ 
(4

,6
23

)

10

76



Q
ue

st
io

ns
?

Co
nt

ac
t:

Ab
be

y 
Ro

dm
an

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

Di
re

ct
or

66
11

 K
en

ilw
or

th
 A

ve
nu

e.
 S

ui
te

 3
01

Ri
ve

rd
al

e,
 M

ar
yl

an
d 

20
73

7
ab

be
y.r

od
m

an
@

m
nc

pp
c.

or
g

(3
01

) 4
54

-1
54

1

Th
an

k 
yo

u!

11

77



This page intentionally left blank.   

78



February 10, 2021 

TO: Commissioners 

FROM: John Kroll, Corporate Budget Director 

SUBJECT: FY22 Spending Affordability Guidelines for Montgomery County 

On Tuesday, February 9, 2021, the Montgomery County Council approved the Spending Affordability 
Guidelines for the operating budget for FY22. 

These guidelines project a 9.1% reduction from the proposed budget, or approximately $13.96M in 
Montgomery County funded departmental budgets, including the MC funded portion of the bi-county 
departments.  By comparison, last year’s SAG reduction was 7.5% ($11.35M). 

The amount of the required reduction may change with the release of the County Executive’s budget on 
March 15th.   

I am presenting this information to the full Commission for two reasons: 

- Reductions that may be proposed for the bi-county departments will undoubtedly impact the
Prince George’s County side of the Commission as well; and

- Equally important, the magnitude of these suggested reductions may result in other spill-over
effects to the full Commission.

I would like to point out that, unlike some past years, we have not yet been able to identify any 
Commission-wide savings that could be applied. 

Although recent history suggests that the fiscal picture of Montgomery County may be shown to 
improve in the next month, given the size of the reduction at this time it may be appropriate to begin 
developing our options now.  Toward that end, the MC Planning Board is scheduled to begin this 
discussion at tomorrow’s Planning Board meeting. 

Item 5d

79



This page intentionally left blank.   

80



 T
HE

 M
AR

YL
AN

D-
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 C
AP

IT
AL

 P
AR

K 
AN

D 
PL

AN
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 E
M

PL
O

YE
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

AN
CE

 E
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

S 
N

O
T 

CO
M

PL
ET

ED
 B

Y 
DU

E 
DA

TE
BY

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T 

AS
 O

F 
JA

N
U

AR
Y 

20
21

31
 - 

60
 D

AY
S

 6
1 

- 9
0 

 D
AY

S
91

 +
 D

AY
S

   
   

   
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
TO

TA
LS

De
c-

20
Ja

n-
21

De
c-

20
Ja

n-
21

De
c-

20
Ja

n-
21

De
c-

20
Ja

n-
21

CH
AI

RM
AN

, M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

CH
AR

IM
AN

, P
RI

N
CE

 G
EO

RG
E'

S 
CO

U
N

TY
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

CI
O

6
2

1
0

6
1

13
3

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

IN
SP

EC
TO

R 
GE

N
ER

AL
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E/

CH
AI

RS
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

DE
PT

. O
F 

HU
M

AN
 R

ES
O

U
RC

ES
 &

 M
GT

.
3

2
0

0
2

2
5

4

LE
GA

L 
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T
2

1
1

1
1

0
3

2

FI
N

AN
CE

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

5
5

1
3

7
5

13
13

PR
IN

CE
 G

EO
RG

E'
S 

PL
AN

N
IN

G
4

1
1

0
0

0
5

1

PR
IN

CE
 G

EO
RG

E'
S 

PA
RK

S 
&

 R
EC

RE
AT

IO
N

19
7

5
0

0
0

24
7

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

 P
AR

KS
10

6
2

1
1

1
13

8

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

10
7

0
1

0
0

10
8

**
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
TO

TA
L 

BY
 D

AY
S 

LA
TE

**
59

31
11

6
17

9

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
-W

ID
E 

TO
TA

L
86

46

**
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

TS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 N
O

TI
FI

ED
 O

F 
LA

TE
 E

VA
LU

AT
IO

N
S.

Item 6a

81



*Data As Of January 31, 2021

Employee Count Evaluation Status

Department Overdue Compliant Total Employees
Finance 13 25 38
Human Resources and Mgt 4 45 49
Legal 2 19 21
MC Commissioner 4 4
MC Parks 8 687 695
MC Planning 8 128 136
Merit System Board 1 1
Office of CIO 3 17 20
Office of Inspector General 4 4
PGC Commissioner 9 9
PGC Parks and Recreation 7 1,046 1,053
PGC Planning 1 174 175
Total Employees 46 2,159 2,205

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

34%

15% 10% 8% 6% 1% 1% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0%

66%

85% 90% 92% 94% 99% 99% 99% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Late Annual Performance Evaluation Report
Career Employees

Overdue Compliant

82



Department of Human Resources and Management 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 402  

Riverdale, Maryland 20737 
Office:  (301) 454-1740 

February 2, 2021 

TO: Department Heads 

VIA: Asuntha Chiang-Smith 
Executive Director 

FROM: William Spencer 
Corporate Human Resources Director 

RE: Accountability for Late Annual Performance Evaluations 

At the December 2020 Commission meeting, it was noted by Commissioner Washington 
that several departments had a high number of late annual performance evaluations 
pending and asked what could be done to make managers more accountable and 
responsive. Executive Director Chiang-Smith stated that she would review the matter 
with the department heads and return with a recommended course of action.  

As most of you know, prior to December 2020, there was no centralized, automated 
“tickler system” to remind managers of due dates for upcoming and/or past due annual 
performance evaluations. Each department and/or manager tracked the due dates 
manually as best they could.  Since this past December, managers now receive 
notifications two months ahead of time with weekly reminders until the evaluation is 
recorded in the system.  Additionally, the next level supervisor (the manager’s manager) 
is also simultaneously informed of the upcoming or past due evaluation.  As a result of 
their frequency, the weekly reminders to the managers and their supervisors are difficult 
to ignore. 

In following through with the Commissioners’ concern of management accountability, 
the Executive Director met recently with the department heads to further discuss the 
matter. Time was allotted for DHRM staff to present a proposed recommendation to 
further enhance manager accountability and timeliness.  The recommendation (which was 
supported by the department heads) holds managers accountable through the performance 
management program’s assessment tool (performance evaluation form). It assesses 
whether a manager fully met expectations, fell short of meeting expectations or failed to 
meet expectations altogether.     

Item 6a-1

83



2 

A review of the performance management tool yields several opportunities to hold 
delinquent managers accountable and provide an opportunity for constructive feedback. 

The first area is “Observations of Commission Policies, Regulations, Rules and 
Practices.”  Relevant areas have been highlighted 

1. Observation of Commission Policies, Regulations, Rules and Practices: Rating ____   
The extent to which the employee:
Follows all applicable Commission policies, regulations, rules, and
practices in completing assigned work and meeting employment
responsibilities. Properly administers any Commission policies,
regulations, and rules that pertain to his or her particular area of work
responsibility.

A manager’s failure to timely complete a subordinate’s evaluation should be reflected as 
non-compliance with Commission policy (Merit System Rule Chapter 1000) which 
requires that all employees be evaluated “at least annually” and should “be completed no 
later than thirty (30) calendar days prior to an employee’s anniversary date.”   Otherwise 
they are not conforming/observing Commission policy. 

Likewise, continued failure on timeliness impacts the performance factor titled 
“Dependability and Responsiveness.”  Managers who are late should have an evaluation 
that reflects this short coming relative to “dependably meeting deadlines, prioritizing 
work, and following through.” Additionally, they likely did not alert their manager in a 
timely manner so that an alternative plan of action could be considered to course correct. 

3. Dependability and Responsiveness: Rating ____   
The extent to which the employee:
Can be depended upon to be on time to work and to meetings.  Completes
work assignments on or before scheduled deadlines and responds to
requests for information or assistance within time frame established by
supervisor.  Routinely notifies appropriate staff of problems or delays.
Prioritizes work and sets realistic deadlines.  Follows through on routine
work responsibilities with minimal supervision.  Accepts responsibility for
own actions, and acknowledges and corrects mistakes when they occur.

On the following page, the rating of “Productivity” also provides an
opportunity to consider the subject of timely evaluations in these areas:

• “applying appropriate amount of time …to specific work
assignments.

• Plans and organizes work so it can be accomplished within normal
work time.”

• Demonstrates ability to adapt quickly to changing work
priorities…”

(See on factor on following page.) 

84



 
 

3 
 

 
5. Productivity:                   Rating____ 

The extent to which the employee: 
Completes work products that (1) are well organized, thorough, error-free, 
and show attention to detail; (2) are consistent with established department 
and/or work unit standards; (3) do not require extensive review; and (4) 
seldom must be returned for corrections.  Appropriately considers 
feedback and integrates it into both the current and future work 
assignments.  Maintains knowledge and skills at the levels needed to be 
successful in all areas of responsibility and demonstrates a willingness to 
learn new techniques to improve productivity.  Applies appropriate 
amount of time, effort and human and material resources to specific work 
assignments.  Plans and organizes work so that it can be accomplished 
within normal work time.  Anticipates emergencies so that they can be 
accommodated with minimal disruption of normal work flow and minimal 
overtime work.  Demonstrates ability to adapt quickly to changing work 
priorities, maintain high level of productivity under stressful conditions, 
and respond effectively in critical or emergency situations. 

 
 
Finally, there is an opportunity under “Supervision” which deals with Demonstrating 
effective performance management practices.” Clearly, untimely feedback is not effective 
and shortens the amount of time till the next evaluation for the employee to correct 
behavior. Moreover, the feedback would not be “consistent and timely” as required below 
 
 9. Supervision:                   Rating ____       
  (To be completed for managers with supervisory responsibility only) 
  The extent to which supervisor: 

Demonstrates effective performance management practices, e.g., (1) 
clearly communicates work expectations; (2) holds staff responsible for 
timely and accurate completion of assignments; (3) provides staff with 
regular feedback on performance strengths and weaknesses in a 
constructive manner; and (4) provides ample opportunity for staff 
comments and questions.  Conducts required performance planning and 
review activities in a direct, thorough, consistent and timely manner.  
Delegates work appropriately and provides staff with opportunities for 
professional growth and development.  Recognizes personnel problems 
and, with appropriate staff, develops plans to resolve them.  Treats staff 
with respect and uses discretion in addressing, discussing, and 
documenting personnel issues.  Effectively decides or recommends 
approval on all personnel actions affecting employment, transfer, 
promotion, reward, discipline or discharge of staff.  Keeps staff informed 
of Commission and department management plans and decisions. 

 
 
 
 

85



 
 

4 
 

It is understood departments may have a need to develop tasks to meet circumstances 
unique to their organization.  The Performance Management Program’s annual employee 
performance evaluation form provides flexibility for departments to customize the task as 
an essential job function with specific elements to be delineated and considered. 
 
 
Part II - Essential Job Functions and Performance Standards 
 
 
Job Function: ______________________________________  Rating _________ 
Performance Standards: 

 
1. 
 
2. 
 
3. 
 
4. 

 
 
These rating factors (along with the one customizable job function noted above) may be 
used singularly or in combination to provide feedback and determine the overall final 
rating. 
One’s final score determines whether the manager is eligible for an annual merit pay 
increment (up to 3.5% of salary), be placed on a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) 
and denied an increment or becomes subject of some other action as appropriate.  The 
ultimate goal is to change behavior, provide feedback, and the development of self-
accountability from within.  
 
Please have your respective Human Resource Managers make distribution to all 
supervisory management staff. 
 
cc:  Tim Mathews, Prince George’s County Department of Parks and Recreation  
 Sharon Simmons, Prince George’s County Department of Planning 
 Robbin Brittingham, Montgomery County Department of Planning 
 Maureen Moyer, Montgomery County Department of Parks 
 Rhonda Rogers, Department of Finance (EOB) 
 Jim Adams, DHRM (EOB) 
 Melva Brown, Office of the General Counsel (EOB) 
  
 
 
 
 

86



MEMO 

TO: Commissioners 

VIA: Joseph Zimmerman, Secretary-Treasurer 
FROM: Tanya Hankton, Corporate Treasury & Investments Manager 
DATE: 1/26/2021 

SUBJECT: Investment Report – December 2020 

The Commission’s pooled cash investment portfolio totaled $634.8 million as of December 31, 2020, 
with a 3.7% decrease from November 30, 2020.  Details are as follows:   

The composition of the pooled cash portfolio as of December 31, 2020 is summarized below:             

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
CORPORATE TREASURY & INVESTMENTS, FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 302, Riverdale, MD 20737 
Telephone (301) 454-1592 / Fax (301) 454-1637 

Item 6b

87



 

 
 
 
The pooled cash portfolio complied with all policy limits with regards to product types and proportions 
throughout the month.     
 
    

                       

               
 
 

Instrument

Policy

Limit Actual Par Value

Wtd. Avg.

Return (B/E)
Money Funds * 25% 25.0% 158,859,719$     0.05%

Farmer Mac 20% 18.9% 120,000,000       0.88%

Federal Farm Credit Bank 20% 16.7% 106,000,000       0.43%

Freddie Mac 20% 13.4% 85,000,000         0.19%

Commercial Paper 10% 9.5% 60,000,000         0.88%

Treasury Bills 100% 9.5% 60,000,000         0.09%

Federal Home Loan Banks   20% 7.1% 45,000,000         0.16%

Treasury Notes 100% 0.0% -                    0.00%

Fannie Mae 20% 0.0% -                    0.00%

Certificates of Deposit 50% 0.0% -                    0.00%

Bankers Acceptances 50% 0.0% -                    0.00%

Repurchase Agreements 60% 0.0% -                    0.00%

100% 634,859,719$ 0.51%

*As of 12/31/2020

Current Investment Portfolio - December 2020

88



 

     In addition to the product limits, portfolio purchases also adhered to the 30% limit per dealer. 
Dealer participation is shown below: 

        

      
  
The market values of unspent debt balances (invested by T. Rowe Price) were as follows: 
 

                              

                      
                       

Prince George's County (PGC-2018A) 11,581,730$        

       Montgomery County (MC-2020A) 10,000,261          

       Montgomery County (MC-2018A) 2,426,400            

24,008,390$    

Market Value - December 2020

89



 

        The Commission had debt service payments during the month totaling $1,828,979 of which 
$1,685,000 was principal and $143,979 was interest.       

 
  
Details by issue of debt outstanding as of December 31, 2020 appear below: 

 

  

Initial Par

Amount 

Outstanding

% 

Outstanding

Issue 

Date

Maturity 

Date

Bi-County

Total Bi-County  $                -    $                -   0%

Prince George’s County

NN-2 (Refunded Z-2)
     14,080,000        1,335,000 9% Mar-10 May-21

PGC-2012A (Refunded P-2, M-2, EE-2)      11,420,000        3,465,000 30% Jun-12 Jan-24

PGC-2014A        8,415,000        2,190,000 26% May-14 Jan-22

PGC-2015A (Refunded JJ-2 )*      24,820,000      20,660,000 83% Oct-15 Jan-36

PGC-2017A      33,000,000      28,050,000 85% Jul-17 Jan-37

PGC-2018A      31,000,000      27,900,000 90% Nov-19 Nov-38

PGC-2020 (Refunded PGC-2014A)     
     19,119,615      19,119,615 100% Oct-20 Jan-34

 Total Prince George’s County  $ 141,854,615  $ 102,719,615 72%

Montgomery County

MC-2012A (Refunded CC-2, FF-2)
       8,035,000        1,915,000 24% Apr-12 Dec-22

MC-2012B        1,300,000           280,000 22% Apr-12 Dec-22

MC-2014A        5,045,000        1,295,000 26% Jun-14 Dec-22

MC-2016A      12,000,000        9,700,000 81% Apr-16 Nov-35

MC-2016B (Refunded FF-2,II-2,MM-2)
       6,120,000        4,740,000 77% Apr-16 Nov-28

MC-2016C (Refunded FF-2 ALA of 2004)
       1,075,000           490,000 46% Apr-16 Nov-24

MC-2017A        8,000,000        6,400,000 80% Apr-17 Nov-36

MC-2018A      12,000,000      10,800,000 90% Oct-18 Nov-38

MC-2018B        3,000,000        1,800,000 60% Oct-18 Nov-23

MC-2020A      10,000,000      10,000,000 100% Jun-20 Nov-40

MC-2020B (Refunded MC-2012A)
       4,895,487        4,895,487 100% Oct-20 Dec-32

MC-2020C (Refunded MC-2012B)
       1,866,095        1,866,095 100% Oct-20 Dec-32

MC-2020D (Refunded MC-2014A)
       9,655,588        9,655,588 100% Oct-20 Dec-33

 Total Montgomery County  $  82,992,170  $  63,837,170 77%

Total  $ 224,846,785  $ 166,556,785 74%

Debt Balances -December 2020

90



 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A     

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE TO INVESTMENT POLICY Approved March 21, 2012 

FISCAL YEAR 2021 – December 31, 2020 
        

OBJECTIVES 
  

  
Met 

Objective 
Within 
Limits Comments 

Protection of principal   Yes     

  Limiting types and amounts of securities Limit   Yes 
All securities purchases were 
within the limits established by 
the Investment Policy at the time 
of purchase of the investments. 
This monthly report is prepared 
for the Secretary-Treasurer to 
demonstrate compliance with 
investment policy objectives and 
limitations. 

    US Government 100%     

    US Federal Agencies - combined 60%     

    US Federal Agencies - each 20%     

    Repurchase Agreements 60%     

    CD’s and Time Deposits 50%     

    Commercial Paper 10%      

    Money Market Mutual Funds  25%      

    MD Local Gov’t Investment Pool 25%      

    Investing Bond Proceeds:        

      State and local agency securities 100%      

      Money Market Mutual Funds 10%      
             

            Bond Proceeds:     Yes T. Rowe Price managed all funds 
within limits       Highly-rated state / local agency securities     

      Highly-rated money market mutual funds       

        (Max. 10% in lower-rated funds)         
             

  
Pre-qualify financial institutions, broker/dealers, 
intermediaries and advisers 

  Yes All firms must meet defined 
capital levels and be approved 
by the Secretary-Treasurer       

  
Ensure competition among participants 30% 

  
Yes No dealer shares exceeded 30% 

  Competitive Bidding     Yes 
All purchases awarded 
competitively. 

             

  Diversification of Maturities         

   Majority of investments shall be a maximum 
maturity of one (1) year.  A portion may be as long 
as two years. 

  Yes All maturities within limits 

         

        
             

  Require third-party collateral and 
safekeeping, and delivery-versus-payment 
settlement 

    

Yes 
  

M&T Investments serves as 
custodian, monitoring 
compliance daily       

             

Maintain sufficient liquidity   Yes   
Sufficient funds available for all 
cash requirements during period 

            

             

Attain a market rate of return   Yes   More than market by 29 
  

The pro-rated rates of return for T-bills and the portfolio 
were 0.09% and 0.38%, respectively. 

    basis points. 

        

    

91



This page intentionally left blank.   

92



February 10, 2021 

Office of the General Counsel 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

Reply To 

Adrian R. Gardner 
General Counsel 
6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 200 
Riverdale, Maryland 20737 
(301) 454-1670 ● (301) 454-1674 fax 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

FROM: Adrian R. Gardner 
General Counsel 

RE: Litigation Report for January 2021 – FY 2021 

Please find the attached litigation report we have prepared for your meeting scheduled on 
Wednesday, February 17, 2021.  As always, please do not hesitate to call me in advance 
if you would like me to provide a substantive briefing on any of the cases reported.   

Table of Contents – January 2021 – FY 2021 Report 

Composition of Pending Litigation ........................................................................... Page 01 
Overview of Pending Litigation (Chart) ................................................................... Page 01 
Litigation Activity Summary .................................................................................... Page 02 
Index of New YTD Cases (FY21)  ........................................................................... Page 03 
Index of Resolved YTD Cases (FY21)  .................................................................... Page 04 
Disposition of FY21 Closed Cases Sorted by Department  ...................................... Page 05 
Index of Reported Cases Sorted by Jurisdiction ....................................................... Page 07 
Litigation Report Ordered by Court Jurisdiction ...................................................... Page 09 

Item 6c

93



This page intentionally left blank.   

94



 
Page 1 of 28 

 
 

 January 2021 
 Composition of Pending Litigation 

 (Sorted by Subject Matter and Forum) 
 STATE 

TRIAL 
COURT 

MARYLAND 
COSA 

MARYLAND 
COURT OF 
APPEALS 

FEDERAL 
TRIAL 

COURT 

FEDERAL 
APPEALS 

COURT 

U.S. 
SUPREME 

COURT 

SUBJECT 
MATTER 
TOTALS 

ADMIN APPEAL: 
LAND USE 9 4 1    14 

ADMIN APPEAL: 
OTHER        

BANKRUPTCY        
CIVIL 
ENFORCEMENT        

CONTRACT 
DISPUTE 4      4 

DEBT 
COLLECTION        

EMPLOYMENT 
DISPUTE 1   2   3 

LAND USE 
DISPUTE        

MISCELLANEOUS        
PROPERTY 
DISPUTE        

TORT CLAIM 
 9      9 

WORKERS’ 
COMPENSATION 6 1     7 

PER FORUM 
TOTALS 
 

29 5 1    37 

 

LAND USE
38%

EMPLOYMENT
8%

TORT CLAIMS
24%

WORKERS' 
COMP.

19%

CONTRACT 
11%

MISC.
0%

OVERVIEW OF PENDING LITIGATION

95



 
  
  
 Page 2 of 28 
 

January 2021 Litigation 
Activity Summary 

 
 COUNT FOR MONTH COUNT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021 

Pending 
In Dec.  
2020 

New 
Cases 

Resolved 
Cases 

Pending 
Prior 
F/Y 

New 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Resolved 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Pending 
Current 
Month 

Admin Appeal: 
Land Use (AALU) 11 3  8 11 5 14 

Admin Appeal: 
Other (AAO)        

 
Bankruptcy (B)        

Civil Enforcement 
(CE)        

Contract Disputes 
(CD) 4    4  4 

Debt Collection 
(D)        

Employment 
Disputes (ED) 2 1  3 1 1 3 

Land Use 
Disputes (LD)        

 
Miscellaneous (M)        

Property Disputes 
(PD)        

 
Tort Claims (T) 9   5 5 1 9 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

(WC) 
6 1  3 4  7 

 
Totals 32 5  19 25 7 37 

 

96



 
  
  
 Page 3 of 28 
 

INDEX OF YTD NEW CASES 
(7/1/2020 TO 6/30/21) 

 
A.  New Trial Court Cases.    Unit  Subject Matter  Month  

Getnet v. M-NCPPC    PG  Tort   July 20 
HMF Paving Contractors, Inc. v. M-NCPPC  MC  Contract  July 20 
Snyder v. State of Maryland, et al.   PG  Tort   July 20 
Amica Mutual Insurance Company v. Montgomery MC  Tort   Aug. 20 
 County, Maryland, et al. 
Uzlyan v. Montgomery County, Maryland, et al. MC  Tort   Aug. 20 
Heard v. M-NCPPC     PG  AALU   Aug. 20 
Wolf, et al. v. Planning Board of Prince George’s PG  AALU   Aug. 20 
 County 
Structural Engineering Group Inc. v. M-NCPPC MC  Contract  Aug. 20 
Concerned Citizens of Cloverly, et al v. Montgomery MC  AALU   Sep. 20 

 County Planning Board 
Shipkovitz v. Montgomery County Planning Board MC  AALU   Sep. 20 
Coakley & Williams v. Commission    PG  Contract  Sep. 20 
Gibson v. Commission    PG  WC   Sep. 20 
Murray v. Commission    PG  WC   Sep. 20 
Newton, et al. v. Prince George’s County   PG  AALU   Sep. 20 
 Planning Board 
Dana v. Lenk, et al.     MC  Tort   Oc.t 20 
HMF Paving Contractors, Inc. v. M-NCPPC  MC  Contract  Oct. 20 
Hoenig v. Commission    PG  WC   Dec. 20 
  (case should be on prior reports as filed in March) 
Simmons, et al. v. Prince George’s County  PG  AALU   Jan. 21 
 Planning Board 
Beck v. Montgomery County Department of Parks MC  ED   Jan. 21 
 
 
 
      

 
  
       
B.  New Appellate Court Cases.   Unit  Subject Matter  Month 
     Benton v. Woodmore Overlook Commercial, LLC PG  AALU   Aug. 20 

Benton v. Woodmore Overlook Commercial, LLC PG  AALU   Sep. 20 
Estreicher v. Montgomery County Planning Board MC  AALU   Sep. 20 
Benton v. Woodmore Overlook Commercial LLC PG  AALU   Sep. 20 
West Montgomery County Citizens Association, Inc. MC  AALU   Dec. 20 

v. Mongtomery County Planning Board, et al. 
 M-NCPPC v. Mail My Meds, LLC   AC  WC   Jan. 21 
Jan A.J. Bove, et al. v. Montgomery County   MC  AALU   Jan. 21  

 Planning Board 
  

97



 
  
  
 Page 4 of 28 
 

INDEX OF YTD RESOLVED CASES 
(7/1/2020 TO 6/30/2021) 

  
A.  Trial Court Cases Resolved.    Unit                 Subject Matter   Month 

 McCourt v. Commission PG  ED   Sep. 20 
 Estreicher v. Montgomery County  MC  AALU   Sep. 20 
 Planning Board 

      Uzlyan v. Montgomery County, et al.              MC  Tort   Oct. 20 
Newton, et al. v. Prince George’s County  PG  AALU   Nov. 20 
 Planning Board 
M-NCPPC v. Mail My Meds, LLC  AC  WC   Dec. 20 
Jan A.J. Bove, et al. v. Montgomery  MC  AALU   Dec. 20 
 County Planning Board 

 
 
B.  Appellate Court Cases Resolved.                Unit  Subject Matter   Month 
 Benton v. Woodmore Overlook   PG  AALU   July 20  
      Commercial, LLC 
(Appeared on the June report in error.  The Commission was not a party to this suit) 
 Gaspard v. Montgomery County Planning      MC  AALU   Oct. 20 
    Planning Board 
 Benton v. Woodmore Overlook   PG  AALU   Oct. 20  
      Commercial, LLC 

  

98



 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f  2
8 

  
D

is
po

si
tio

n 
of

 F
Y2

1 
C

lo
se

d 
C

as
es

 S
or

te
d 

by
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

LI
EN

T 
PR

IN
C

IP
A

L 
C

A
U

SE
 O

F 
A

C
TI

O
N

 IN
 D

IS
PU

TE
 

D
IS

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s 
R

et
ire

m
en

t S
ys

te
m

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 &

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 
 

M
cC

ou
rt 

v.
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 

Ju
di

ci
al

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

M
er

it 
Bo

ar
d 

D
ec

is
io

n 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
re

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n 
un

de
r t

he
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Se
rie

s 
09

/0
4/

20
 –

 D
ec

is
io

n 
of

 M
er

it 
Bo

ar
d 

Af
fir

m
ed

.9
/0

4/
20

20
 

 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f P

la
nn

in
g 

 
 

 
 

 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f P

ar
ks

  
 

 
U

zy
la

n 
v.

 M
on

tg
om

er
y 

C
ou

nt
, M

ar
yl

an
d,

 e
t a

l. 
Pe

rs
on

al
 in

ju
rie

s 
m

at
te

r a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 tu
lip

 p
op

la
r  

 
tre

e 
st

rik
in

g 
a 

ho
m

e.
 

 
 

 

10
/1

5/
20

 -
 C

as
e 

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 
w

ith
 C

as
e 

N
o.

 4
83

06
8-

V.
 

 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
 P

ol
ic

e 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 
 

 
G

as
pa

rd
 v

. M
on

tg
om

er
y 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 

Ju
di

ci
al

 re
vi

ew
 o

f d
ec

is
io

n 
af

fir
m

in
g 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Bo

ar
d’

s 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Pl
an

 1
20

16
01

80
 

G
le

n 
M

ill 
– 

Pa
rc

el
 8

33
 

10
/2

9/
20

20
 –

 J
ud

gm
en

t o
f 

C
irc

ui
t C

ou
rt 

Af
fir

m
ed

. 

Pr
in

ce
 G

eo
rg

e’
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
Pr

in
ce

 G
eo

rg
e’

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
 

 
Be

nt
on

 v
. W

oo
dm

or
e 

O
ve

rlo
ok

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

, L
LC

 
Ju

di
ci

al
 

R
ev

ie
w

 
of

 
de

ci
si

on
 

of
 

Pr
in

ce
 

G
eo

rg
e’

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 
10

/2
3/

20
20

 –
 P

et
iti

on
 fo

r W
rit

 
of

 C
er

t. 
de

ni
ed

. M
at

te
r s

til
l 

pe
nd

in
g 

in
 C

ou
rt 

of
 S

pe
ci

al
 

Ap
pe

al
s.

  
N

ew
to

n,
 e

t a
l. 

v.
 P

rin
ce

 G
eo

rg
e’

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Bo
ar

d 
 

Jj
ud

ic
ia

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f P

rin
ce

 G
eo

rg
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Bo

ar
d'

s 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

pl
an

 o
f s

ub
di

vi
si

on
 

4 
-1

90
48

  

11
/0

9/
20

20
 - 

Pe
tit

io
n 

di
sm

is
se

d 
by

 P
et

iti
on

er
. 

 
 

99



 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f  2
8 

 

Pr
in

ce
 G

eo
rg

e’
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pr

in
ce

 G
eo

rg
e’

s 
Pa

rk
 P

ol
ic

e 
 

 
 

 
 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
 

 
 

 
 

100



 
         Page 7 of 28 

INDEX OF CASES 
 

DISTRICT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND ............................................................ 9 
DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ..................................................... 9 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR ANNE ARUNDEL COUNTY, MARYLAND ............................................................ 9 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission v. Mail My Meds, LLC ..................................... 9 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND ............................................................ 10 
Amica Mutual Insurance Company v. Montgomery County, Maryland, et al. ............................................. 10 
Concerned Citizens of Cloverly, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board .......................................... 10 
Dana v. Lenk, et al. ..................................................................................................................................... 11 
HMF Paving Contractors Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission ................................ 11 
HMF Paving Contractors Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission ................................ 12 
Jan A.J. Bove, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board ..................................................................... 12 
Kosary v. Montgomery County Planning Board .......................................................................................... 12 
Shipkovitz v. Montgomery County Planning Board ..................................................................................... 13 
Structural Engineering Group Inc. v. Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission ............. 13 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ..................................................... 14 
6525 Belcrest Road, LLC v. Dewey, L.C., et al........................................................................................... 14 
Alexander v. Proctor .................................................................................................................................... 15 
Brown v. City of Bowie ................................................................................................................................ 16 
Coakley & Williams Construction v. Commission ....................................................................................... 16 
Coe v. Commission ..................................................................................................................................... 17 
Commission v. Batson ................................................................................................................................ 17 
Getnet v. Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission ....................................................... 18 
Gibson v. Commission ................................................................................................................................ 18 
Heard v. Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission......................................................... 19 
Hoenig v. Commission ................................................................................................................................ 19 
Jackson v. Prince George’s County Sports & Learning Complex............................................................... 19 
King v. Commission .................................................................................................................................... 20 
Montague v. Newton White Mansion .......................................................................................................... 20 
Murray v. Commission ................................................................................................................................ 21 
Pumphrey v. Wilson .................................................................................................................................... 21 
Simmons, et al.  v. P.G. Planning Board ..................................................................................................... 22 
Snyder v. State of Maryland, et al. .............................................................................................................. 22 
Stewart v. P.G. Planning Board .................................................................................................................. 23 
Wolf, et al. v. Planning Board of Prince George’s County .......................................................................... 23 
MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS ......................................................................................... 24 

101



 
         Page 8 of 28 

Benton v. Woodmore Overlook Commercial, LLC ...................................................................................... 24 
Benton v. Woodmore Overlook Commercial, LLC ...................................................................................... 25 
Jan A.J. Bove, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board ..................................................................... 25 
Estreicher v. Montgomery County Planning Board. .................................................................................... 25 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission v. Mail My Meds, LLC ................................... 26 
MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS .......................................................................................................... 26 
West Montgomey County Citizens Association, Inc. v. Montgomery County Planning Board, et al .......... 26 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND .................................................................................................. 27 
Beck v. Montgomery County Department of Parks, et al. ........................................................................... 27 
Evans v. Commission, et al. ........................................................................................................................ 27 
 
  

102



 
         Page 9 of 28 

DISTRICT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 

No Pending Cases 
 
 

DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 

No Pending Cases 
 
 
 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR ANNE ARUNDEL COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 

 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission v. Mail My Meds, LLC 

Case No. C-02-CV-20-001143 (WC) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of WCC decision regarding mail order prescription medication.  
 
Status:    Decision of WCC affirmed.  
 
Docket: 

05/01/2020 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
05/27/2020 Response to Petition filed 
6/26/2020 Commission’s Memorandum in Support of on the record 

Petition for Judicial Review 
06/08/2020 Scheduling Order and Order for Mediation 
06/29/2020 Order Vacating 6/8/2020 Order. Matter to proceed in normal 

course. 
07/27/2020 Opposition and Response to Commission’s Memorandum in 

Support of on the Record Judicial Review 
08/11/2020 Commission’s Reply to Opposition 
11/02/2020 Hearing 
11/23/2020 Order of Court affirming Worker’s Compensation Commission 
12/03/2020 Commission’s Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment 
12/16/2020 Opposition to Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment 
12/23/2020 Order of Court denying Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment 
01/22/2021 Notice of Appeal 

 
  

103



 
         Page 10 of 28 

 
 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 
 

Amica Mutual Insurance Company v. Montgomery County, Maryland, et al. 
Case No. 483068-V (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Subrogation suit for damages caused by a tulip poplar tree striking home.  
 
Status:    Motion pending. 
 
Docket: 

08/06/2020 Complaint filed. 
08/19/2020 Commission served. 
09/08/2020 Plaintiff’s Motion to Consolidate with Case 483039-V 
09/18/2020 Defendant Montgomery County Maryland’s Answer to 

Complaint 
09/22/2020 Commission’s Motion to Dismiss 
09/22/2020 Commission’s Motion to Consolidate with Case 483039-V 
10/15/2020 Order of the Court Granting Motion to Consolidate. All future 

pleadings to be filed in case 483068V.  
 
 

Concerned Citizens of Cloverly, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
Case No. 483411-V (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Mills  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of Montgomery County Planning Board’s approval of RCCG 

Jesus House Preliminary Plan 120160040  
 
Status:    Petition filed. 
  
Docket: 

09/10/2020 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
10/01/2020 Planning Board’s Response to Petition for Judicial Review filed 
10/09/2020 RCCG Jesus House DC’s Response to Petition filed 
01/04/2021 Defendant ‘s Response to Petitioners’ Memorandum of Law 
01/04/2021 RCCG Jesus House DC’s Answering Memorandum 
01/04/2021 RCCG Jesus House DC’s Motion to Strike 
01/19/2021 Petitioner’s Opposition to Motion to Strike 
01/19/2021 Petitioner’s Reply Memorandum 

 
 

  

104



 
         Page 11 of 28 

Dana v. Lenk, et al. 
Case No. 482474-V (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel: 
   
Abstract: Plaintiff disputes the existence of, and access to, a right-of-way utilized by an 

adjacent property owner. 
. 
 
Status:    Amended Complaint filed.  
Docket: 

06/17/2020 Complaint filed 
07/28/2020 Defendant Lenk’s Motion to Dismiss  
07/30/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
08/06/2020 Defendant Lenk’s Reply to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to 

Dismiss 
10/13/2020 Motion to Dismiss granted in part and denied in part 
10/21/2020 Defendant Lenk’s Answer to Complaint 
10/22/2020 Amended Complaint filed 
10/29/2020 Commission served` 
11/16/2020 Montgomery County’s Answer to Amended Complaint 
12/10/2020 Order of Court - Count IV of Amended Complaint dismissed 

with prejudice  
12/29/2020 Commission’s Answer to Amended Complaint 
01/27/2021  Order of Court for Alternative Dispute Resolution 

 
 

HMF Paving Contractors Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission 
Case No. 481768-V (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Johnson 
 
Abstract:   Construction suit alleging failure to pay two pay applications. 
 
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

04/30/2020 Complaint filed 
08/28/2020 Motion to Dismiss filed 
09/24/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
11/13/2020 Commission’s Reply to Motion to Dismiss 
11/19/2020 Motions hearing postponed 
11/25/2020 Commission’s Supplemental Memorandum  
12/01/2020 Motions hearing held 
12/01/2020 Motion to Dismiss or in the Alternative for Summary Judgment 

denied  
12/16/2020  Answer to Complaint  

 

105



 
         Page 12 of 28 

HMF Paving Contractors Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission 
Case No. 483255-V (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:   Construction suit alleging failure to pay final payment. 
 
Status:    Motions pending. 
 
Docket: 

08/25/2020 Complaint filed 
11/01/2020 Commission served 
11/25/2020 Motion to Dismiss 
12/28/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss  
03/16/2021 Motions hearing 

 
 

Jan A.J. Bove, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
Case No. 480775-V (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Sorrento 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of Montgomery County Planning Board’s approval of 7025 

Longwood Drive subdivision no. 620190100.  
 
Status:    Appeal noted. 
 
Docket: 

03/09/2020 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
03/18/2020 Commission’s Response to Petition filed 
11/06/2020 Oral argument held 
12/02/202 Resolution of planning board affirmed  
12/30/2020 Notice of Appeal 

 
 

Kosary v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
Case No. 476283-V (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Sorrento 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of Montgomery County Planning Board’s approval of Primrose 

School Preliminary Forest Conservation Plan CU-18-08.  
 
Status:    Case stayed. 
 
Docket: 

12/06/2019 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
12/11/2019 Planning Board’s Motion to Dismiss filed 
12/12/2019 Response to Petition for Judicial Review filed 
12/19/2019 Petitioner’s Supplemental Petition for Judicial Review filed 

106



 
         Page 13 of 28 

12/23/2019 Petitioner’s Response to Motion to Dismiss filed. 
01/21/2020 Motion to Dismiss denied as moot. 
01/22/2020 Petitioner’s Motion for Stay and Request for Hearing. 
02/06/2020 Primrose School Opposition to Motion to Stay. 
02/28/2020 Motion for Stay Granted 
03/03/2020 Case stayed pending resolution from County Hearing Examiner 
03/26/2020 Petitioner’s interim report on status of administrative 

proceedings 
 
 

Shipkovitz v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
Case No. 483442-V (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Coleman 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Petition for Judicial Review of Planning Board Approval of 12500 Ardennes 

Avenue Site Plan820200080 
  
Status:   Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
 
Docket: 

09/15/2020 Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
09/28/2020 Planning Board’s Response to Petition filed. 
10/26/2020 Ardennes Partners, LLC’s Response to Petition filed. 
10/26/2020 Ardennes Partners, LLC’s and Planning Board’s Joint Motion to 

Dismiss Petition for Judicial Review 
12/02/2020 Plaintiff's Motion to Suspend Proceedings  
12/10/2020 Opposition to Motion to Suspend Proceedings  

 
 

Structural Engineering Group Inc. v. Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 
Case No. 483234-V (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Johnson 
 
Abstract:  Construction change order dispute and time delay claim related to greenhouse at 

Brookside Gardens. 
  
Status:   In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

08/21/2020 Complaint filed. 
08/31/2020 Commission served. 
09/29/2020 Motion to Dismiss or in the Alternative for Summary Judgment 

filed. 
10/09/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss filed. 
12/09/2020 Motions hearing held. 
12/09/2020 Motion to Dismiss or in the alternative for Summary Judgment 

denied. 
12/28/2020 Answer to Complaint filed. 

107



 
         Page 14 of 28 

01/27/2021 Order of Court for Alternative Dispute Resolution  
 

 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 

 
 

6525 Belcrest Road, LLC v. Dewey, L.C., et al. 
Case No.  CAE 20-11589 (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Harvin 
 

Abstract:                         Declaratory Judgment Action filed over a dispute involving a parking 
parcel.  Plaintiff contends that Defendants have misconstrued prior approvals of 
the Planning Board regarding the need for parking in a manner that will harm 
their interests.  Plaintiff seeks to enjoin the Planning Board from approving a 
Detailed Site Plan. 

Status:    Matter Stayed pending arbitration. 
 
Docket: 

04/14/2020 Complaint filed 
06/05/2020 Commission served 
07/06/2020 Answer filed by Commission 
07/21/2020 Motion to Dismiss filed by Defendant Dewey, L.C. 
07/23/2020 Motion to Dismiss filed by BE UTC Dewey Parcel, LLC 
08/20/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
09/14/2020 Defendant, Dewey, L.C.’s Reply Response in Support of its 

Motion to Dismiss or Stay and Request for hearing 
09/16/2020 Defendant, BE UTC Dewey Parcel, LLC’s Reply in Support of 

Motion to Dismiss and Request for hearing 
10/22/2020 Motions Hearing continued 
10/26/2020 Defendants Dewey, L.C. and Bald Eagle Partners, Inc. Line 

Requesting Judicial Notice of Arbitrator’s Decision 
12/23/2020 Motions hearing held. Court takes under advisement. 
01/11/2021 Order of Court - case is stayed pending resolution of the 

current arbitration proceedings; further ordered that a status 
hearing in this matter be scheduled. 

 
  

108



 
         Page 15 of 28 

Alexander v. Proctor 
Case No. CAL19-37187 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:                         Alexander filed complaint against Park Police officer arising from arrest on 

Commission property. 
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

11/20/2019 Complaint filed 
12/06/2019 Proctor served 
12/09/2019 Commission served 
01/03/2020 Commission’s Motion to Dismiss filed 
01/23/2020 Motion to Dismiss denied. Plaintiff to file Amended Complaint 

on or before 02/07/2020. 
02/08/2020 Amended Complaint filed 
02/21/2020 Motion to Strike Amended Complaint or in the alternative to 

Dismiss 
03/09/2020 Opposition to Motion to Strike 
03/27/2020 Court orders matter to be set in for hearing on Motion 
05/06/2020 Motion to Quash and for Protective Order 
05/06/2020  Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Quash and for Protective 

Order 
05/22/2020 Order of Court – Motion to Quash and for Protective Order 

held in abeyance 
06/19/2020 Motions Hearing postponed due to COVID-19 
09/16/2020 Motions Hearing  
9/23/2020 Order of Court – Motion to Strike or in the alternative Motion 

to Dismiss denied.  Motion to Quash and for Protective Order 
moot.  Case to continue to due course. 

9/30/2020 Answer to Amended Complaint filed. 
 

  

109



 
         Page 16 of 28 

Brown v. City of Bowie, et al. 
Case No. CAL19-35931 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract: Injuries resulting from an event at Trap and Skeet location owned by the 

Commission.  Defendants include the individual who discharged a weapon, a 
volunteer assigned to the group that day and Shooting Stars Shotgun Sports, 
LLC, an entity that provides shooting instructors at that location.  

  
Status:   3rd Amended Complaint filed. 
 
Docket: 

11/15/2019 Complaint filed 
01/27/2020 Defendant City of Bowie’s Motion to Dismiss or in the 

Alternative for Summary Judgment 
02/05/2020 Summons reissued for Commission 
02/13/2020 Opposition to City of Bowie’s Motion to Dismiss 
02/26/2020 Defendant Daughtery’s answer filed 
03/13/2020 Commission served 
04/08/2020 Commission’s Answer filed 
05/15/2020 Motions Hearing on City’s Motion to Dismiss – continued due 

to pandemic 
9/18/2020  Amended Complaint and Jury Trial 
9/21/2020 Second Amended Complaint 
9/24/2020 Hearing on Defendant City of Bowie’s Motion to Dismiss 

and/or Summary Judgment. Motion to Dismiss is denied.  
Motion for Summary Judgment is granted based upon 
governmental immunity. 

10/28/2020 Third Amended Complaint filed 
11/23/2020 Motion to Compel Discovery from Defendant Daugherty 
12/08/2020 Answer to complaint by Defendant Knode  
12/21/2020 Order of the court compelling discovery from Daugherty 

 
 

Coakley & Williams Construction v. Commission 
Case No. CAL 20-13593 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract: Breach of contract regarding work done at the Southern Area Aquatics 

Recreation Center. 
  
Status:    Complaint filed. 
 
Docket: 

07/15/2020 Complaint filed 
09/15/2020 Commission served 
10/08/2020 Motion to Dismiss filed 
10/27/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
01/11/2021 Motion to Quash and for Protective Order 

110



 
         Page 17 of 28 

Coe v. Commission 
Case No. CAL19-39808 (ED) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract: Coe filed for Judicial Review of decision to terminate employment following 

LEOBR police disciplinary hearing. 
  
Status:    Awaiting decision. 
 
Docket: 

12/13/2019 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
01/03/2020 Commission’s Response to Petition for Judicial Review 
06/12/2020 Oral argument continued at Judge’s request 
08/7/2020 Oral argument held 

 
 

Commission v. Batson 
Case No. CAL19-24204 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract: The Commission filed for Judicial Review on the record of WCC order regarding 

surgical authorization for leg causally related to accidental injury.   
  
Status:    Awaiting Trial. 
 
Docket: 

07/26/2019 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
08/19/2019 Batson’s Notice of Intent to Participate, Jury Demand 
08/22/2019 Commission’s Motion to Strike Request for De Novo Review 

and Request for Jury Demand 
09/03/2019 Opposition to Motion to Strike filed 
09/06/2019 Memo in Support of on the record Judicial Review filed 
10/02/2019 Order of Court- Commission’s Motion to Strike Request for De 

Novo Review and Request for Jury Trial denied. Case to 
proceed De Novo before a jury. 

11/21/2019 Motion to Bifurcate filed by Commission in an attempt to 
litigate the dispositive legal issue preliminarily before any de 
novo trial.  

12/16/2019 Motion to Bifurcate denied. 
04/06/2021 Trial. 

 
  

111



 
         Page 18 of 28 

Getnet v. Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 
Case No. CAL 20-13268(Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:  Johnson 
 
Abstract:                         Tort suit for injuries allegedly sustained when visitor fell through decking at a 

historic property not owned by the Commission. 
 
Status:   In discovery.  
 
Docket: 

07/06/2020 Complaint filed 
07/29/2020 Commission served 
08/20/2020 Motion to Dismiss filed 
09/10/2020 Amended Complaint 
09/11/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
09/22/2020 Amended Complaint 
10/09/2020 Answer filed.  
11/02/2020 2nd Amended Complaint filed 
11/06/2020 Defendant Montgomery County’s Motion to Dismiss 2nd 

Amended Complaint 
12/03/2020 Case dismissed as to Montgomery County only  

 
 

Gibson v. Commission 
Case No. CAL 20-15318 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claimant seeks judicial review of an order from the Workers’ Compensation 

Commission denying causal connection of back injury to the accidental injury of 
October 20, 2017.  

  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

09/03/2020 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
09/18/2020 Response to Petition and Expert Designation 
08/11/2021 Trial 

 
 

  

112



 
         Page 19 of 28 

Heard v. Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 
Case No. CAL 20-14095(AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Warner 
Other Counsel:  Goldsmith 
 
Abstract:                         Judicial review of the Prince George’s County Planning Board’s approval of 

Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 4-05068 and denial of March 31, 2020, request 
for document under the Maryland Public Information Act. 

  
Status:   Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
  
Docket: 

07/30/2020 Petition filed 
08/16/2020 Commission served 
08/31/2020 Response to Petition for Judicial Review filed. 

 
 

Hoenig v. Commission 
Case No. CAL 20-07257 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claimant seeks judicial review of February 7, 2020 order from the Workers’ 

Compensation Commission regarding extent of disability.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

03/04/2020 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
03/16/2020 Response to Petition and Expert Designation 
09/12/2021 Trial 

 
 

Jackson v. Prince George’s County Sports & Learning Complex 
Case No. CAL19-21516 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:                         Injury to a minor from use of equipment at the Sports & Learning Complex. 
  
Status:   In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

07/15/2019 Complaint filed 
01/22/2020 Commission accepted service 
01/27/2020 Complaint to be amended to reflect Commission as party. 
02/04/2020 Amended Complaint filed 
03/18/2020 Commission served 
04/08/2020 Commission’s answer filed. 
09/02/2021 Trial 

113



 
         Page 20 of 28 

 
 

King v. Commission 
Case No. CAL 19-30096 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claimant seeks judicial review of an order from the Workers’ Compensation 

Commission denying authorization for neck surgery. 
  
Status:    Awaiting trial. 
 
Docket: 

09/23/2019 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
10/03/2019 Commission filed response to Petition. 
03/25/2021 Trial  

 
 
 

Montague v. Newton White Mansion 
Case No. CAL 20-05753 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Slip and fall on ice at Newton White Mansion.  
 
Status:   In discovery.  
 
Docket: 

02/13/2020 Complaint filed. 
06/19/2020 Amended Complaint filed. 
07/21/2020 Answer filed. 
09/15/2021 Trial. 

 
  

114



 
         Page 21 of 28 

Murray v. Commission 
Case No. CAL 20-16372 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claimant seeks judicial review of an order from the Workers’ Compensation 

Commission that held claimant is not permanently and totally disabled. 
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

09/18/2020 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
10/05/2020 Response to Petition for Judicial Review and Expert 

Designation 
10/13/2020 Subsequent Injury Fund’s Response to Petition for Judicial 

Review 
10/13/2020 Subsequent Injury Fund’s Cross-Petition for Judicial Review 
10/21/2020 Claimant’s Response to Cross-Petition 
10/27/2020 Commission’s Response to Cross-Petition 
10/27/2020 Notice of Cross-Appeal 
08/11/2021 Trial 

 
 
 

Pumphrey v. Wilson 
Case No. CAL 19-30161 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Foster 
 
Abstract:  Automobile accident with vehicle driven by deceased former Commission 

employee.  
 
Status:   In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

09/16/2019 Complaint filed 
07/24/2020 Motion to Dismiss  
08/17/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss and Request for Hearing. 
09/02/2020 Order of Court – Motion to Dismiss Denied 
09/18/2020 Answer filed 
06/08/2021 Trial 

 
  

115



 
         Page 22 of 28 

 
Simmons, et al.  v. P.G. Planning Board 

Case No. CAL 21-00308 (AALU) 
 
Lead Counsel:  Warner 
Other Counsel:  Goldsmith 
 
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of Prince George’s County Planning Board’s approval of 

Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 4-20006 (Freeway Airport)  
 
Status:   Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
 
Docket: 

1/07/2021 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
 
 

Snyder v. State of Maryland, et al. 
Case No. CAL 20-13024 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:                         Tort suit for injuries allegedly sustained when tennis player allegedly tripped in 

hole of divider net and broke clavicle. 
 
Status:   2nd Amended Complaint filed.  
 
Docket: 

06/19/2020 Complaint filed. 
07/27/2020 Commission’s Motion to Dismiss 
07/27/2020 Motion to Transfer Venue 
08/11/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
08/25/2020  State of Maryland’s Motion to Dismiss 
09/10/2020 Amended Complaint. 
10/30/2020 2nd Amended Complaint filed 

 
  

116



 
         Page 23 of 28 

 
 

Stewart v. P.G. Planning Board 
Case No. CAL 20-11215 (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Goldsmith 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of Prince George’s County Planning Board’s approval of GB Mall 

Limited Partnership/Quantum Company Preliminary Plan Case No.4-19023  
 
Status:   Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
 
Docket: 

04/01/2020 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
04/13/2020 Amended Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
06/26/2020 Second Amended Petition filed. 
07/20/2020 Response to Petition filed. 

 
 

Wolf, et al. v. Planning Board of Prince George’s County 
Case No. CAL20-14895 (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Warner 
Other Counsel:  Goldsmith 
                        
Abstract: Judicial Review of the Prince George’s County Planning Board’s approval of 

Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 4-18001 (Magruder Pointe).  
 
 Status:   Motions pending.   
Docket: 

08/19/2020 Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
09/29/2020 Notice of Intent to Participate   
09/29/2020 Motion to Dismiss filed by Werrlein WSSC, LLC 
10/13/2020 City of Hyattsville’s Notice of Intent to Participate 
10/19/2020 Response to Petition for Judicial Review 
10/19/2020 Planning Board’s Motion to Dismiss filed 
10/27/2020 City of Hyattsville’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss filed 
11/30/2020 Motion to Consolidate with cases CAL19-21492, City of 

Hyattsville v. Prince George’s County District Council and 
CAL19-22819 Eisen v. Prince George’s County District 
Council  

12/28/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
 

  

117



 
         Page 24 of 28 

MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS 
 

 
Benton v. Woodmore Overlook Commercial, LLC 

CSA-REG-2118-2019 (AALU)  
(Originally filed under CAL19-14488 in Prince George’s County) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Borden 
Other Counsel:  Goldsmith 
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of decision of the Prince George’s County Planning Board No. 

19-32, File No. 4-180007. 
 
Status:   Awaiting decision. 
 
Docket:  

12/19/2019 Appeal filed 
02/11/2020 Show Cause issued by Court regarding non-lawyer representing 

corporate entities 
02/25/2020 Response to Show Cause filed 
03/04/2020 Order of Court. Show Cause satisfied, appeal to proceed. 
05/07/2020 Motion for Emergency Ex Parte Temporary Restraining Order 

Pending Appeal and Order to Show Cause Why a Preliminary 
Injunction Should Not Be Issued 

05/13/2020 Commission’s Response to Motion filed. 
05/18/2020 Appellant’s Motion for Leave & Notice of Intent to Respond to 

Commission’s Opposition to Temporary Restraining Order 
Pending Appeal 

05/26/2020 Appellant’s Motion for Leave of the Maryland Rules Regard the 
Page Limit, Word Count, Content or Form of Appellant’s Motion 
for Temporary, Preliminary and Permanent Injunction. 

06/03/2020 Woodmore Overlook’s Motion to Join in Commission’s Opposition 
and Response to Appellant’s Motion for Temporary Restraining 
Order and Preliminary Injunction. 

06/04/2020 Order of the Court. Appellant’s Motion’s denied. 
06/23/2020 Appellant Brief and Record Extract filed 
06/30/2020 Order – Appellee to refile brief in compliance with Maryland Rules 

by 8/28/2020 
08/03/2020 Petition for Writ of Certiorari 
10/22/2020 Summary Notice from Court. Matter to be decided without oral 

argument 
10/23/2020  Petition for Writ of Certiorari denied 

 

118



 
         Page 25 of 28 

Benton v. Woodmore Overlook Commercial, LLC 
CSA-REG-0707-2020 (AALU)  

(Originally filed under CAL20-13237 in Prince George’s County) 
 
 

Lead Counsel:  Warner 
Other Counsel:  Goldsmith 
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of decision of the Prince George’s County Planning Board on 

Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 4-18007, Woodmore Overlook Commercial. 
 
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket:  

09/09/2020 Appeal filed 
09/30/2020 Entry of Appearance by Commission 
10/27/2020 Motion to Dismiss 
11/18/2020 Motion to Dismiss denied 

 
 

Jan A.J. Bove, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
CSA-REG-1232-2020 (AALU)  

(originally filed under Case No. 480775V in Circuit Court Montgomery County) (AALU) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of Montgomery County Planning Board’s approval of 7025 

Longwood Drive subdivision no. 620190100.  
 
Status:    Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

12/30/2020 Appeal filed 
 
 

Estreicher v. Montgomery County Planning Board. 
CSA-REG-0781-2020 (AALU)  

(Originally filed under 472672V in Montgomery County) 
 
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Appeal of August 28, 2020 Order reversing Planning Board Resolution MCPB No 

19-108 approving Sketch Plan 320190100 and remanding the matter to the 
Planning Board for further proceedings pursuant to the Court’s findings.  

 
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket:  

09/28/2020 Appeal filed 
 

119



 
         Page 26 of 28 

Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission v. Mail My Meds, LLC 
CSA-REG-1314-2020 (WC) 

(Originally filed as Case No. C-02-CV-20-001143 in Circuit Court Anne Arundel) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of WCC decision regarding mail order prescription medication.  
 
Status:    Appeal filed.  
 
Docket: 

01/22/2021 Appeal filed 
 
 
 

MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS 
 

 
West Montgomey County Citizens Association, Inc. v. Montgomery County Planning Board, et al 

COA-PET-0400-2020 (AALU)  
(Originally filed under 451996V in Montgomery County; CSA-REG-0579-2019) 

 
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Appeal of August 28, 2020 Order reversing Planning Board Resolution MCPB No 

19-108 approving Sketch Plan 320190100 and remanding the matter to the 
Planning Board for further proceedings pursuant to the Court’s findings.  

 
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket:  

12/14/2020  Petition for Writ of Certiorari 
12/29/2020 Respondent’s Answer filed 
01/05/2021 Petitioner’s Reply filed 

 
  

120



 
         Page 27 of 28 

 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND 

 
 

Beck v. Montgomery County Department of Parks, et al. 
8:20-cv-03305 PX (ED) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Foster 
 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff alleges discrimination on the basis of disability under the ADA and FMLA. 
 
 
Status:   Complaint filed 
 
Docket: 

11/14/2019 Complaint filed 
01/13/2021 Commission served 

 
 

Evans v. Commission, et al. 
8:19-cv-02651 TJS (ED) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Foster 
 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff, police lieutenant, filed a complaint against the Commission and four 

individual defendants, alleging discrimination, retaliation and assorted negligence 
and constitutional violations. 

 
 
Status:   In discovery. 
Docket: 

09/11/2019 Complaint filed 
10/23/2019 Notice of Intent to file Motion for More Definite Statement filed 

by Defendants Commission, McSwain, and Riley 
10/24/2019 Notice of Intent to file Motion for More Definite Statement filed 

by J. Creed on behalf of Defendant Murphy 
10/28/2019 Notice of Intent to File a Motion for More Definite Statement 

filed by attorney C. Bruce on behalf of Defendant Uhrig 
11/19/2019 Case Management Conference held 
11/20/2019 Order directing Plaintiff’s Counsel to file Status Report by 

November 26, 2019 
11/26/2019 Status Report filed by Plaintiff agreeing to file Amended 

Complaint specifying against whom each claim is asserted and 
dates of alleged events. 

12/10/2019 Amended Complaint filed. 
12/23/2019 Notice of Intent to file a Motion to Dismiss filed by all 

defendants 
12/30/2019 Case Management conference held 

121



 
         Page 28 of 28 

01/09/2020 Order granting Plaintiff leave to file Amended Complaint 
01/16/2020 Second Amended Complaint filed 
02/14/2020 Joint Motion to Dismiss filed by all Defendants 
03/20/2020 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
03/20/2020  Motion for Leave to file Third Amended Complaint 
03/20/2020 Third Amended Complaint 
04/17/2020 Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ joint Opposition to Plaintiff’s 

Motion for Leave to file Third Amended Complaint. 
05/07/2020 Order granting Motion for Leave to File Third Amended 

Complaint; denying as moot Defendants' Joint Motion to 
Dismiss; granting defendants leave to renew their Joint Motion 
to Dismiss by May 22, 2020. 

06/05/2020 Joint Motion to Dismiss for Failure to State a Claim filed by 
Commission, McSwain, Murphy, Riley and Uhrig. 

07/10/2020 Motion for Leave to File Excess Pages 
07/16/2020 Order granting in part and denying in part Motion for Leave to 

file Excess Pages and directing the Plaintiff to file a brief by 
7/23/2020 

07/23/2020 Response in Opposition to Joint Motion to Dismiss for Failure 
to State a Claim 

08/06/2020 Response to Motion for Leave to file Excess Pages. 
08/06/2020 Reply to Opposition to Joint Motion to Dismiss. 
11/13/2020 Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss granted in part. Counts 4, 5, 

part of 6 and 7 -10, part of 11, and 12 dismissed. Counts, 1 -3, 
part of 6 and 11, 13 -15 will proceed at this stage. Defendants 
to file an answer to remaining claims.   

11/27/2020 Answer filed. 
01/11/2021 Case management conference. 
01/11/2021 Order – Case referred to Magistrate Judge Timothy J. Sullivan  
01/15/2021 Joint Consent to Proceed before Magistrate 

 

122


	1. Comm Agenda 2-17-20
	blank spacer page
	2a. 1-20-21 Comm Mtg FINAL
	4a. ECM - 2-3-21 OPEN FINAL
	4b. January 5 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes - Approved
	5a. Full Comm Memo 21-02
	MEMORANDUM

	blank spacer page
	5a1. Resolution 21-02 2020-169 signed
	5a2. Golf Cart Easement Open Session- 20-11-12
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	�
	�
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	�
	Slide Number 8
	�
	�

	5b. Full Comm Memo 21-03
	MEMORANDUM

	blank spacer page
	5b1. Resolution 21-03 2020-184-Signed
	blank spacer page
	5b2. Vista Way-SD Easement Open Session- 20-12-17 revised
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	�
	�

	blank spacer page
	5c1. S&B Audit Committee Presentation MNCPPC FY20
	5c2. Commission Mtg Presentation 2020 Final
	blank spacer page
	5d. MC SAG Briefing to Commission
	blank spacer page
	6a1. LATE PERF EVAL JAN.2021
	Sheet1

	6a2. Performance Reviews Report - January 31 2021 - Commission Mtg
	Summary

	6a3. Accountability for Late Annual Performance Evaluations
	6b. Investment Report December 20 Commission mtg
	blank spacer page
	6c1. January 2021 Cover Memo
	MEMORANDUM
	Table of Contents – January 2021 – FY 2021 Report


	blank spacer page
	6c2. January 2021 Litigation Report
	SUBJECT MATTER TOTALS
	U.S. SUPREME
	FEDERAL
	FEDERAL
	MARYLAND
	STATE TRIAL COURT
	MARYLAND
	APPEALS
	TRIAL
	COURT OF
	COSA
	COURT
	COURT
	COURT
	APPEALS
	ADMIN APPEAL: LAND USE
	1
	4
	9
	ADMIN APPEAL: OTHER
	BANKRUPTCY
	CIVIL ENFORCEMENT
	CONTRACT DISPUTE
	4
	DEBT COLLECTION
	EMPLOYMENT DISPUTE
	3
	2
	1
	LAND USE DISPUTE
	MISCELLANEOUS
	PROPERTY DISPUTE
	TORT CLAIM
	9
	9
	WORKERS’ COMPENSATION
	7
	1
	6
	PER FORUM TOTALS
	1
	Gaspard v. Montgomery County Planning Board

	5
	29
	Index of Cases
	DISTRICT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
	DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND
	CIRCUIT COURT FOR Anne Arundel COUNTY, MARYLAND
	Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission v. Mail My Meds, LLC

	CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
	Amica Mutual Insurance Company v. Montgomery County, Maryland, et al.
	Concerned Citizens of Cloverly, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board
	Dana v. Lenk, et al.
	HMF Paving Contractors Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission
	HMF Paving Contractors Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission
	Jan A.J. Bove, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board
	Kosary v. Montgomery County Planning Board
	Shipkovitz v. Montgomery County Planning Board
	Structural Engineering Group Inc. v. Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission

	CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND
	6525 Belcrest Road, LLC v. Dewey, L.C., et al.
	Alexander v. Proctor
	Brown v. City of Bowie, et al.
	Coakley & Williams Construction v. Commission
	Coe v. Commission
	Commission v. Batson
	Getnet v. Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
	Gibson v. Commission
	Heard v. Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
	Hoenig v. Commission
	Jackson v. Prince George’s County Sports & Learning Complex
	King v. Commission
	Montague v. Newton White Mansion
	Murray v. Commission
	Pumphrey v. Wilson
	Simmons, et al.  v. P.G. Planning Board
	Snyder v. State of Maryland, et al.
	Stewart v. P.G. Planning Board
	Wolf, et al. v. Planning Board of Prince George’s County

	MARYLAND COURT OF special APPEALS
	Benton v. Woodmore Overlook Commercial, LLC
	Benton v. Woodmore Overlook Commercial, LLC
	Jan A.J. Bove, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board
	Estreicher v. Montgomery County Planning Board.
	Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission v. Mail My Meds, LLC

	MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS
	West Montgomey County Citizens Association, Inc. v. Montgomery County Planning Board, et al

	U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND
	Beck v. Montgomery County Department of Parks, et al.
	Evans v. Commission, et al.





